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STATE OE ILLINOIS ) BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION
: i _ ) SS o COMMISSION :

COUNTY OF COOK ) -
Catherine J acdbs,

Petitioner,

VS, | | NO O9WCO30456 & 09WC030457
' ' 20IWCC0335

Echo Joint Agreement and the Rate Adjustment Fund,

Respondent

: ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19( ﬂ

A Petltlon under Sectlon I9(f) of the Tllinois Workers Cornpensatlon Act to Correct
Clerical Error in the Decision and Opinion on Review dated June 17, 2020 has been filed by
Petitioner’s herein. Upon cons1derat10n of sald Petmon the Commission i is of the oprmon
that it should be granted :

AT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision and
Opinion on Rev1ew dated June 17, 2020 i is hereby vacated and recalled pursuant to Section
19(}‘) for clerlcal error contarned thereln

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Dec1smn and
Oplmon on Rev1ew shaII be 1ssued sunuItaneously wrth th1s Order

The party commencmg the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcult Court shall ﬁle Wrth
the Comm1ssron a Notice of Intent to FlIe for Revrew in C1rcu1t Court.

.DATED B JUN 29 2020
SM/sj -
44

' _. | Stephen J. Mathis
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) D Affirm and adept (no changes) L—_I Injured Workers’ Benefit Fund (§4(d))
) SS. D Affirm with changes & Rate Ad}ustment Fund {(§8(g))
COUNTY OF COOK ) D Reverse D Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
| [ p1o/Fatal denied
. Mod:fy D None of'the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

CATHERINE JACOBS,
Petitioner,
vSs. o NOS. 09WC30456 &
' VIOWC30457
20IWCC0335
ECHO JOINT AGREEMENT,and THE RATE
ADJUSTMENT FUND '
| Respondent.

_ CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

T1me1y Petmons for Revaew havmg been ﬁIed by the Pet1t10ner and Respondent herem
and notice given to all parties, the Commission, after con51dermg the issues of -and being
advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator in case number 09 WC
30457 as stated below and othervwse afﬁrms and adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof The Commlssmn afﬁms and adopts the Dec1510n of the
Arbltrator in 06 wC 30456 :

09 WC 30456 '

The Commlsswn hereby afﬁrms and adopts the Arbltrator s demal of beneﬁts in this
consohdated matter ' : :

09 wc' 30457
‘The Comrmssmn notes that on February 26 2014 Petitloner s treatmg physman Dr.

Lubenow reported that Ms. Jacobs was able to return to light duty with a 20- pound weight
restriction. Dr. Lubenow found that Pet1t10ner achleved maximum medtcal 1mprovement
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effectlve February 26, 2014. Petxtloner was a Spemal Educatlon teacher workmg inan
eIernentary school. Petitioner was limited t0 a 4- hour workday with incremental monthly
increases of 1 hour per day, up to 8 hours per day Restrictions on hﬁmg, carrying and other
physical activities i.e. kneeling, crouching and stair climbing were maintained, Lisa Helm, the
certified vocational counselor with Vocamotive who evaluated Petitioner concluded in her report
that Petitioner was not employable by virtue of her restrictions. Based upon this ev1dence the
Commlssxon hereby reclass1ﬁes the award of beneﬁts to conform to the evzdence

Based upon the foregomg the Comrmssmn here’oy modiﬁes the Arbztrator s award of
temporary total d1sab111ty benefits in pa:rt to commence October 28, 2010 through February 26,
2014, that being the date Petitioner achieved maximum medrcal improvement according to Dr.
Lubenow. Petitioner shall be awarded maintenance commencing February 27, 2014 through June
17, 2014. The award of permanent total disability benefits is hereby modified to commence June
18, 2014 The demal of penaittes and fees is afﬁrmed :

All else is afﬁnned

ITIS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay
reasonable and necessary medical services of $321,368.95, as provided in Section 8(a) of the
Act, and subject to Sect1on 8 2of the Act where apphcable .

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY TI—IE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $717.97 per week for a period of 228,287 weeks, commencing March 24,2009
through January 13, 2010; June 1, 2010 through August 23, 2010; and October 28, 2010 through
February 26, 2014 that being the penod of temporary total mcapamty for work under §8(b) of the
Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay
Petitioner temporary partial disability benefits of $464.06 per week for 28 weeks, commencing
January 21, 2010 through May 31, 2010, and August 24, 2010 through Ooto‘oer 27 2010, as
prov1ded in Sectron 8(a) of the Act

_ IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay
Petitioner mainteriance beneﬁts of $717.97 per week for 15.857 weeks, cornmenemg February
217, 2014 through June 17 2014 as provrded in Sectlon 8(a) of the Act

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY. THE COMMISSION that Respondent shaH pay
Petxtloner permanent and total dlsabﬂlty beneﬁts of $717.97 per week for life, commencing June
18, 2014 as provided in Section 8(f) of the Act. Commencmg on the second July 15% after the
entry of thls award, Petitioner may become eligible for cost—of—hvmg adjustments, paid by the
Rate Aajustment F und as prov1ded in Sect1on S(g) of the Act .

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petrtlonel
interest under §19(n) of the Act, 1f any

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credlt
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of $43 653 35 for medlcal beneﬁts that have been paid, and Respondent shall hold Pentxoner _
harmless from any claims by any providers of the services for wh1ch Respondent is recewmg
credit, as pr0v1ded in Sectlon 8(]) of the Act. :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator’s denial of
penaltzes under Sectlons 19(k) and 1901 and fees under Sectlon 16 18 hereby afﬁrmed '

Bond for the removal of this cause to the Clrcult Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at the sum
of $75,000.00. The party commencing the proceedings for review in the Circuit Court shall file
with the Commission a Notice of Intent to File for Rev1ew in Circuit Court.

DATED: JUN 29 2020
SIM/msb :
0:5/6/20

) ’ﬁw%&%

~ Douglas McCarthy

QL otk Cagpdlt

L. Elizabeth Coppolettl
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STATE O_F ILL]NOIS _) D In_;ured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
S )SS. PX] Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY OF COOK )] D Second In_]ury Fund (§8(e)18)
o D None of the above

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSAT{ON COMMISSION

ARBITRATION DECISION
-.Catherme M. Jacobs : Case # @'WC 30457
EmployeefPetltloner o R o
o o Consolidated cases: 09 WC 30456
ECHO Joint Agreement ' o : R

: Empioyer/Respondent '

An Applzcatzon for Aabustment of Clazm was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearmg was matled to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable Steven Fruth Arbitrator of the Commission, in. the city of
- Chicago, on 1/10/2018 and 2/22/2018. After rev1ewmg all of the ev1dencepresented Arbitrator Brian T.

- Cronin hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the dlsputed issues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to this
document : AR : _ _

DISPUTED ISSUES

A. [:] Was Respondent operating under and subject to the Illinois Workers' Compensation or Occupational
' Diseases Act?

D Was there an empioyee~employer relationship?

[] D1d an aemdent occur that arose out of and in the course of Petitioner's employment by Respondent?
E What was the date of the ae01dent‘? T _ : :
: Was timely nottoe of the ace1dent glven to Respondent‘? L
1Is Petltxoner s current condltmn of 111-be1ng causally reiated to the mjury‘?
What were Pettttoner S earmngs" ' L
. What was Petttxoner s age at the ttme of the acc1dent‘?
o What was Petttxoner s mantai status at the time of the accxdent‘? : : :
E Were the medtcai setvices that were prov1ded to Pettttoner reasonable and necessmy‘? Has Respondent
patd ali appropnate charges t'or ail reasonable and necessary medtcal servwes? .
. What temporary benefits are in dtspute‘7 D
~..XKTPD . . [X]Maintenance [X] TTD
L. . What is the nature and extent of the mjury‘? S
M Shouid penalt1es or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent‘?
N. D Is Respondent due any credit‘? :
0. D Other G B

Fﬁmoemoow
ll><f

[CArbDec 2/10 100 W: Randolph Street #8 200 Chzcago IL 60601 312/814 6611 Toll-free 866/352-3033 Web site: www.iwee. t! gov
_ Downsta:e oﬂ' Ces: Co!hnsw!!e 6!8/346 3450. Peor:a 309/6 71- 3019 Rockford 81 S/987-7292 Sprmgf ield 21 7/785 ?084
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FINDINGS - .

On 3]23/2009 Respondent was operatmg under and subjeet to the provxslons of the Act

On thls date an ernployee employer relanonshlp dzd ex1st between Pet:tloner and Respondent
On this date Pettttoner dzd sustam an accident that arose out of and in the course of emptoyment
| Tnnely notlce of thls aceident was gwen to Respondent | _ |

Petttloner S eurrent condmon of 1Il—be1ng is eausally related to the acmdent

Inthe year precedlng the mJury, Petitioner earned $38 770 20 for a 36-week schoot year the average
weekly wage was $1, 076 95, : . o

On the date of accxdent Petttioner was 45 years of age, smgle w1th 1 dependent child.
Petitloner has not recelved alt reasonable and necessary medlcal servmes _ _
Respondent has not patd all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medxcal services.

Respondent shall be glven a ) credit of $217 550. 50 for TTD, $12 993 64 for TPD $0 00 for mamtenance and
$8 272 45 for other beneﬁts, for a total credlt of $238 81 6 59 '

__ _Respondent is entitled to a cred1t of $43 653 35 under Seetton 8(]) of the Act for medzeal benefits pald through
i .-thetr group carrier. _ L k.

| .',ORDER :

Respondent shall pay reasonable and necessary medlcal services of $321 368 95, as provxded in Section 8(a)
and sub;ect to Sectton 8.2 of the Act where apphcable -

Respondent shall be given a eredtt of $43 653 35 for medical benefits that have been pa1d and Respondent
shall hold Petitioner harmless from any claims by any providers of the services for which Respondent is
rece1v1ng th:s credxt as provxded in Sectton 8(3) of the Act. '

Respondent shaﬂ pay Petztioner ternporary total dlsabthty beneﬁts of $717. 97/week for 244-1! 7weeks
commencing 3/24/2009 through 1/13/2010, 6!01!201 0 through 8!23!201 0, and 10I28]201 0 through
6/1 71201 4 as prov1ded in Seetlon 8(b) of the Act

Respondent shall pay Petittoner temporary parttai disabxhty benefits of $464 06/week for 28 weeks

commencing 1121 1201 0 through 5[31 1201 0 and 8!24[201 0 through 10[27]201 0, as prov;ded in Seetton 8(a)
oftheAet : _ : e i PR _ _

Respondent shall pay Pettttoner temporary parttal d1sab1hty beneﬁts of $549 99/week for 3 weeks,
commencmg 1 I1 11201 6 through 1131I201 6 as provxded in Sectton S(a) of the Act

Respondent shall pay Petlttoner mamtenance ‘oeneﬁts of $717 97/week for 83 3/7 weeks, commencmg
6[1 8[201 4 through 1l1 0!2016 and 2[11201 6 through 2I1 2/2016 as prowded in Seetton 8(a) of the Aet

Respondent shall pay Petlttoner permanent and total dtsabihty beneﬁts of $717 97/week for hfe, commenemg
on2/13/2201 6, as prov1ded in Sectton S(t) of the Act.



Commencing on the second July 15th after the entry of this award, Petitioner may become eligible for cost-of-
living adjustments, paid by the Rate Adjustment Fund, as provided in Section 8(g) of the Act. -

RULESREGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this
decision, and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Commission. o ' e ) '

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the ré_té set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however
ifan employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue.

H

‘ 3/6/2019
Signature of Arbitrator Date

ICAbDec p. 3

MAR 7 - 2019
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION _

CATHERINE JACOBS )
)
Petitio‘ner, )
) R _
V. L - ) Case No_s. 09 WC 30457
o ) Consolidated with
ECHO JOINT AGREEMENT ) 09 WC 30456
Respondent. _ } Arbitrator Steven Fruth

ADDENDUM T O ARBITRATION DECISION

L Fmdn j_ﬂf Fact

Introductwnli’rocedurai HlStO[X

On July 22 20()9 Cathenne J acobs (“Pet1t1oner”) ﬁled an Apphcation for Adjustment of
Claim and then an Amended Appheatmn for Adjustrnent of Clann and was as31gned a case
number of 09 WC 30457 In both the ongmal and Amended Apphcatlons Petltxoner alleged that
on March 23 2009 she sustamed an acadent wh11e Worklng for Echo Jomt Agreement
(“Respondent”) when she was assaulted by a mentally challenged student and mjured her ¢ neck |
head, shoulders rmd back iow back and bdateral legs” asa result

Respondent $ Exmblt 14 shows that Respondent last pald Petltloner TTD/mamtenance
beneﬁts on January 8 2016 for the penod endmg that day Petxtloner then worked in an.
accommodated modlﬁed duty ]ob for Respondent On February 12, 2016 Dr Lubenow opmed
Pen’doner was perrnanently and totaHy dlsabled In a Ietter dated Apnl 4 2016 wntten by.
Bonme Jordan of Respondent and sent to Petmoner, Ms .Tordan stated that Petztloner s posmon
was termmated based on Dr Lubenow s opmions . |

Thereaﬁer, the pames prepared this case for tnal Respondent rnade a PPD advance to

Petlnoner in the amount of $8 272 45



Before Arbitrator Fruth, Petitioner and Respondent proceeded to trial on January 10,
2018 and closed proofs on February 22, 2018. Commission records indicate that on August 9,
2018, Arbitrator Fruth recused himself from writing the decision for t.hi.'s case and submitted the
case to the Cotnmission for reassignment. The Cotnmi_ssioh reassigned the case to Arbitrator
Cronin. Arbitrator Cronin \t/as on medical leave from July 24, 2t)18 through October 8, 2018
and was first made aware of this reassignment sometime after his return to the Commission. The
parties did not object to Arbitrator Cronin carefully reviewing the evidence and writing the

decision. The parties sent their proposed findings to Arbitrator Cronin on October 24, 2018,

Testimonv of Petitioner, Catherine J acobs

Petmoner testlﬁed that in March 2009, she was 45 years old, is currently 54 years old,
and was bomm on March 30, 1963 (T.23)

Prior to March 2009, the condition of her low back, legs, torso, shoulders, mid-back,
upper back and lower back was completely fine and healthy (T 24) Before March 2009 she
had had no problems w1th those body parts (T 24) leewxse, she had never had any condltlon
of chromc pam in her hfe prior to March 2009. Pnor to March 2009 her act1v1t1es mcluded
walkmg at least S 7 txrnes per week W1th her gxrtﬁ-xends for 1 3 hours, motorcycle ndmg w1th her
boyfnend Blll Izzo 3-4 tunes a week boatmg in the summer, playmg volieyball 2-3 tlmes per
week 9 months out of the year m a competltxve Eeague (T 25) Petltloner testlﬁed that none of

these act1v1t1es caused any sort of pam or dxscomfort Aiso prior to March 2009 she had no

restnctlons as to the Iength of tzme or dxstance that she could dnve a vehlcle (T 26) leemse

w1th standmg, waikmg, and s1tt1ng, she had no llmltanons (T 26) In March 2009 she was
employed by Respondent which educates chlldren w1th spemal needs (T 26 27) Her JOb title

was Speual Educatlon Teacher meanmg that she was hlred to teach chlidren who had an IQ of
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70 or betow and he£ children were even lower funetiorﬁng than that, in the 50— - 60 range 6f 1.

(T. 27) The end of the school year, 2009 would be the end of her fourth year worklng for
Respondent in March 2009 she was ass1gned to the Academy for Learmng (AFL) facrhty at
ECHO, located in Doiton, Ilhnors at 306 East 144“‘ Street Dolton, Hlinois. (T 28- 29) Her
students were aged 13 -21 yeaxs old. (T 29) Although hrgh schools and grammar schools
already have specral edueatron programs if the chddren have any gang afﬁhatlon problems with
guns, wolence behaworal or severe emotmnal problems, then they would be brought over to
' ECHO (T 29- 30) The behavxoral problems of these children 1nclude throwmg desks chalrs

books, or hlttmg other students or teachers (T. 30) The size of the students was between 5’ and
100 1bs. and 6’ 3” and 300 Ibs. (T. 31) Petitioner was 5°6” tall and welghed 122 lbs (T 31)
Her job descnptlon requrred her to partictpate in hﬁrng students and the physwal restramt
of students (T 32 see Px 26) She would elther hold the student down in a chair, get hun on
the ﬂoor and put h13 ha:nds behmd thern and walt for someone to come s to the classroom or 1f two
children were ﬁghtmg, an Atde woutd take 1, she would take the other they would phys1ca11y
pull the 2 students apart (T 34) Her aide at the time was }udy Damels and she was 180 — 200
Ibs. and 5’6" and about 12_years oider than her. (T.34-35) If she drd not. have access to an Alde,_
she would need to cornplete the re'straint on her own, whieh was a requirement of her job. (T.
5 _ _ _
Petrtroner further testrﬁed that 98% of her job mvolved her ‘oemg on her feet and moving

about in Mareh 2009 her work was not conﬁned to actmtres at the Academy of Leammg but _
1ncluded off-campus actrvrties such as grocery shopplng, ba.nkmg, and recyehng For example

they would vrslt Sam’s Club or Ultra Foods to learn ﬁ.mctronal life skrlls whleh mcluded money

hand_lmg.
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On March 23, 2009, a little after 10:00 a.m., Petitioner was at Ultra Fodds along with her
Aide, Judy Daniels, and her students, which included Kevin. (T. 45-47) She téstiﬁed that Kevin
was behind her in the store and she felt things being thrown off the shelves, so she turned around
and then he threw her onto a pallet jack. (T. 47) She landed with her réar end caught between the
two forks of the pallet jack; the underpart of her thigh was caught on one side and her back was
caught on the other side. (T.48) She felt that she had been struck extremely hard by Kevin. She
" remembers her feet coming up entirely off the floor. (T. 49) She got up with the assistance of
her Aide and because she saw another lady shopping, she needed to restrain Kevin. She
restrained him with Judy, which took about 10 minutes, in a bed of lettuce. It took them about
20 minutes to calm him down and then they were able to get him back on the bus. (T. 50} Onee
on the bus, she remembers saying to her Aide that her back was really boiﬁeﬂng her and that she
felt like she had the flu. (T. 51) Everything was aching from her neck, her left shoulder, and then
her lower back. She was also bleeding on her left hand from where he bit her. (T. 51)

Once back at the Academy, she provided notice that she had been involved in this
incident, with the nurse. (T. 52)

Petitioher first went t6 MacNeal Hospital with complaints of left shouldgx and lower back
pain. (T. 53) She was adviéed lto Stay off work and. to séek further .treatment fr(;rﬁ her family
physician énd an infé;:tiots c_iiéease &octor because of the bite to her hand. (T. 53) On March 25,
12009, she _s:aw her famiiy_ physiciaﬁ,- Dr. Hsieh, with complaihts of 10\;v back and shoulder pain.
_Sh_e_notibe&_ that hcgﬁain was gétt_i_n'g.wofs_é :t_ha:n: ever. He advised her to stay off 'w_o_rk and to
consider ph);sical thetapy. | (T. 54) | | |

'.She a}sﬁ s.aw. Dr. Levi.n-, an infect_idus disease specialist, and he tested her since she had

been bitten. The test results came back negative. (T. 55)
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On March 26 2009 she was seen by Dr Lorenz at Hmsdale Orthopaedrcs (T 56) At
that tlme, her pam symptoms had not changed Dr. Lorenz’ advrsed her to stay off work
provrded her w1th medrcatrons and recomrnended physrcal therapy He also asked her to see hiS
as5001ate Dr. Kmncrc (T. 56) | | |

Her ﬁrst round of physwal therapy was 2- 3 time a week at ATL (T 57) Whlle gomg to
physwal therapy, Petttxoner complamed that she was tender to the touch whlch meant that When
her back was touched it hurt. (T: 58)

On Apnl 9 2009 Dr Kmncm ﬁrst saw her and recommended that she contrnue physrcal
therapy and use a TENS umt Petttloner testrﬁed that the TENS umt drd not prov1de any beneﬁt
Dr. Kn‘mcm also performed a myofasc1a1 re}ease and adrmmstered acupuncture and mjectlons
However Petrtloner had issues w1th sensrtmty, S0 the doctor placed the needles about her
shoulder ‘olade and closer to the srdes of her back than to the rrud back. She was able to tolerate
this. (T 58 60) | s

x Petttroner continaed to see .Dr '.Kirincic once a Week thereaﬁer Petitroner started to feel a
bumlng sensatron for the ﬁrst trme rn her lower back and her buttocks (T 61) At that pomt Dr.
Kirincic suggested that she stop formal phys.1cal therapy and go to a facﬂlty run by Dr Gelband
a chlropractor (T 61) She treated wrth Dr Gelband for about 8 months, he performed
chrropracttc care and theraples, whmh were very hmlted therapaes (T 62) On May 11, 2009 Dr '
Kmncrc ran a rheumatologrcal battery on her that came back negatrve (T 63) Dr Kmnczc also_
ordered MRIs of her shoulders thoracrc spme and lurnbar spme On May 21 2009 Petttroner‘
had an MRI of her ieﬁ shoulder ey |

On June I 2009 s‘le was sent for an exammatton by Respondent S Sectron }2 physman

Dr. Wehner (T 63- 64)
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Petitioner continued to have pain in her back, particularly between her shoulder blades
and down to her belt buckle. She was feeling more intense pain in her- “git” bones, i.e., her
pelvic bones. (T 66) Also, it was hard puttmg clothes on because she couid not be touched She
was havmg troubles wearing anythmg like a bra or anythmg with elastlc in it. (T 66) She feit
severe pain and if someone touched her, she would start crying. (T. 67) It would take a while for
her nerves to calm down and then her back would feel okay after she w'ore-clothes. (T.67)

Aroend July 13, 2009, her benefits were terminated based on Dr. Wehner’s reports.
However, it was eventually worked out that her back benefits Would be. paid, and she continued
with her treatment. (T. 69)

- On July 16, 2009, Dr. Kirincic referred Petitioner to Dr. Zindrick for a work up on her
spinal cendition. (T. 69) During that entire time, hef doctors continued to take her off work. (T.
70) Petitioner testified that she was having probiems with the two joints in the top of her hips
whenever she would watk. (T. 72) Dr. Zindrick then prescribed an MRI of the hips. On July 30,
2009, she was exammed by a general surgeon fo rule out any sort of internal pathoiogy of the
.hlps (T. 72)

On August 3, 2009 she returned to Dr. Zmdnck who referred her to hlS assoclate, Dr.
Louis. On August 4, 2009 she saw Dr. Louxs who saw her oniy that one tlme He indicated that
there may be a condltlon of RSD involved. (T 73) |

She contmued under the care of Dr. Kirincic at Hmsdale Oxthopedms and in September

_ 2009 Dr Klrmczc ordered an EMG whlch was. admimstered on. September 2, 2009 (T. 74) On .
September 8' 009 she began treatment at the Rehab Institute of Chlcago whmh Dr Kmnc1e
recommended (T 75) Wh11e at RIC Dr. Rader mterwewed her. - Based on ‘his initial

assessment, RIC aliowed her in an 1n~pat1ent program there for 1 month. This program included
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physxcal therapy, occnpatlonal therapy, psych1atry, mtndfbody trammg, and other modahtres to
handle the parn thhout medwatron (T 76) She found that the program was beneﬁc1a1 in that _
they taught her how to pace herself with her pam by usrng relaxatron techmques and therap1es
However the program drd not make her condltlon go away. (T. 77) |

About that t1me she was also seen by Dr CltOW the ernployer s Sectton 12 physroran
o« 78) : . _ . :

Around ttns tnne, she also moved her resrdence from Brookﬁeld 1111n01s to Indlana She
moved because she had a 5 story house w1th lots of sta1rs wrth no bathroom or bedroorn on the
ﬁrst ﬁoor S0 1t was exhaustmg to go up and down the stairs and to keep up a household (T 79)
In Ind1ana, she moved to a smgle»level apartrnent (T 79) ’I‘he drstanoe from the apartment to
the Academy for Learmng was 15 mrnutes (T 80) Based on Dr CltOW s January 14 2010
' 'report she was advased to return to work full duty She made a good falth attempt to return to
work at that pornt (T 80) However the pain was Just mcreasmg, and every day Just seemed
harder and harder to get up and go to work By the end of the day, she was physically exhausted
and the pam was unbearabie On J anuary 21, 2010 she returned to Dr Krrmetc, at whtch pomt
the doctor reeommended a reduced~hour return to work 4 hours per day (T 81) She also.
referred her to Dr Gruft a pam psychologlst and Dr Tumlrn | |

On January 21 2010 Petttloner retumed to work Respondent aliowed her to work 4

hours a day as a Spee1a1 Educatton T eacher (T. 83) She had a 15-rnmute dnve to sehool but _

| '. sometrmes her A1de J udy Damels would prck her up. (T 83) The accommodatrons glven to her
.by Respondent mcluded not havmg a ﬁrst penod and gomg home for iunch She could teach
everythrng w1thm those 4 hours Respondent also set her up at u—shaped desk S0 she Was always

on one side of the desk and her students were on the other sade She was also allowed to sit on
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the floor with pillows and teach the class. (T. 84) While she was teaehing, éhe was also paid a
differential for the hours that she was losing. (T. 84) |

" On January 22,2010, she saw Dr. Tumlin on one occasion. Between February 3 - March
2010, she was 'seen by Dr. Gruft on about 5 occasions. Dr. Gruft was trying to rule out celiac
disease. (T. 85) She was referred to Dr. Demeo at Rush in March 2010 to determine whether
celiac disease was a cause of her complaints. A biopsy was taken that ruled out celiac disease.
(T. 85)

Petitioner testified that she noticed, upon returning to work for 4 hours/day in the
beginning of 2010, that the pain she experienced on Monday was just as bad as it was on Friday.
She was also having pain from sitting while driving to and from work. (’{‘ 86-87) However, she
kept working through May 31, 2010, which was the end of the school year. | (T. 88)

In August 2010, she returned to work with a limited 4-hour schedule. (T. 90) Dr.
Kirincic referred her to Dr. Lubenow at Rush Pain Center. The parties agreed to such referral.
(T. 90)

On October‘M 2010 Petirioner saw Dr: Lubenow for her initial evaluation. He took a
detarled hlstory and conducted a physrcal examlnatlon of her as weH as a vrsual examination of
her entlre body (T. 91) Durmg the course of care wrth Dr Lubenew, he measured terﬁperature
drﬁ"erences in various parts of her body mechamcally Dr. Lubenow also referred her to hrs pain
psychoiogrst Dr Patncra Memman (T 92) | |

-On October 27 2010 she saw Dr Lubenow agam and also saw Dr Memman (T 92y - -
Dr. Lubenow performed a full exammatmn of her body, made notanens of her temperature

dlfferentrais and took her off work completely Eventualiy, her TTD weekly beneﬁts were

restarted (T 93)
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On December 6 2010 Dr Lubertow r)rescnbed a 5- day mfusron of medlcatlon o be
adrmmstered at Rush Medxcal Center Such 1nfu31on was to- be followed by an aggresswe
physrcal therapy program Petmoner recalled recervmg very httle benefit from the 5- day
mfusxon o_f rnedicatl_on. Each t1rr1e Dr. Lubenow saw Petitioner, he would condect a physical
examrnatron . | |

On January 12, 2011, Dr Lubenow prescribed a trial of a spmal cord stlmulator Dr
Lubenow was treatmg her wrth oral medlcatlon whwh Petitioner testiﬁed was helpmg the pam
or decreasmg, maybe some of 1t - but she was not very functxonal at that tlme (T 95-96)

On Aprll 18, 2011 a trlal spine cord strmulator was 1mplanted whrle she was at Rush
Petltloner testlﬁed that it deﬁmtely benefited her in that she was able to walk 1onger dtstances
but the sttmulatlon up her back was pamful Her legs seemed more functlonal but the strmulator |
was hmdermg her back (T 96 97) Dunng that perrod they would try to change the settings on
the stlmulator to see if she would get any additional benefit. She also saw exthcr Dr. Lubenow or
one of hls assoclates, Dr. }aycox

By May 5, 201 1, Dr Lubenow suggested the tnal of an mtrathecal pump because she was
not gettmg sufﬁclent beneﬁt from the trral of a spmal eord stlmulator (T. 97) An mtratheeal
pump isa pump that dehvers medxcatlon mternally into her spme (T. 98) Petmoner testlﬁed she
felt she was gettmg a beneﬁt ﬁ'om the mtrathecal pump smce it delivers’ medlcatlon to the spme
rather than endunng the s1de effects of the oral medrcatlon that goes through her hver (T 98)

On Iune 7 2011 Petrtloner testtﬁed she recerved a letter from Debra Hooks at Echo |
I omt Agreernent The letter adv1scd her that they would need a physrclan s statement for her to

retum to work that school year and requlred a full- duty release without any restnctlons (T 100)



On July 7, 2011, she was sent for another examination, this time by Dr. Noren,
Respondent’s Section 12 examining physician.

On July 21, 2011, Dr. Lubenow prescribed a motorized scooter for _h_er. Petitioner, not
Respondent, paid for that scooter. She finds it helps her get to the store, fol_iow her children in
the mall, and save her strength for walking. (T. 102) By the end of 2011, she was only able to
walk a quarter of a block and would notice that the pain would go from a 3-4 and spike up
immediately as soon as she walked a certain distance. (T. 103) Also at that time, she was unable
to drive so she needed someone else to drive her places. (T. 104)

Petitioner received a letter, dated August 3, 2011, from Debra Hooks. (See Ptt. 28) Ms.
Hooks wrote that they wanted her back for a full contractual day. Petitioner testified that, to her
understanding, that meant her employment was terminated. (T. 105) Although she could not
return to work, she continued to receive her weekly workers’ compensation benefits from
Respondent. (T. 105)

Around February 27, 2012, following a “Utilization Review for Authorization of
Placement of the Intrathecai Pump,” she had the permanent pump installed. (T. 106) However,
she initially had an adverse reaction to the pump that mcluded severe headaches and a puncture
of the sac around her spme She lost spmal ﬂuid as aresult. (T, 107) Petmoner testlﬁed that the
permanent 1ntratheeal pump deﬁmtely beneﬁts her Prior to the pump, the pain was out of
control and she felt pain greater than an 8 out of 10 But now, she can control the pam between 4

times a day She can use. the bolus whenever she chooses, but aﬂer 4 times in 1 day, she is

blocked from using it. (T 108}
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After she had the pump mstalled she contmued under the care of Dr Lubenow and hrs
assoc1ates at Rush She returned to them every few weeks for t1tratton ‘of the- medtcatrons
Durmg those v1s1ts, fora majorrty of the trme, the Rush staff mcreased the medtcatron (T. 108—
109) Dunng those v1srts when Dr. Lubenow would increase her rnedtcatlon she would notice a
correspondmg decrease in her patn ‘She also contmued to recente workers’ compensatron

beneﬁts dunng that time.

On May 23 2012 Pettttoner was sent to Dr. Konowitz, one of Respondent ] Sectton 12
phys1ctans (T. 110) | |

On August 1, 2012 at Dr. Lubenow S request Petlttoner underwent an 1n1t1a1 Functxonal |
Capacrty Evaluation (“FCE”) at ATI After the FCE she remembers havmg a hard ttrne gettmg
up and out of the ATI facrhty Petttroner testtﬁed that she feels that it was just too much and that
' the patn was really severe m her back and her 1egs (T 111)

On August 16 2012 she returned to Dr. Lubenow and adwsed hlm of her mcreased pam
after the FCE ‘At that time, he dlscussed takrng a drrvmg exam. Petrtroner test1ﬁed that she |
wanted to drrve Dr Lubenow also referred her to Dr. Merriman for another psychologlcai
evaluatton (T 112) | | | | | 2

In August and Septernber 2012, Petlttoner was seef ‘oy Dr Obolsky, one of the
Respondent’s Sectton 12 physactans, for a psyehologtcal evaluatron (T 113- 114) Dr. Obolsky
_saw her for 2 day -- ﬁrst for a wntten test and then for an rntervrew that he conducted (T 114)

. In May 2013 she was seen at Manan;oy for a speelahzed dnvmg evaluatlon (T 114) It |
mvolved her getttng into a ear and dnvmg When she was evaluated the evaluator never asked'
her to proceed wrth further testmg or trarnmg and dxd not say that she needed the use of hand

cont_rols or aiternate ve_hr_cl_e controls. (T. 115)
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On July 25, 2013, Petitioner saw Dr. Lubenow. He recommended an update of her FCE.
Her FCE was updated on QOctober 17, 2013 at ATI. (T. 116)

While under the care of Dr. Lubenow, the parties agreed that she would undergo
vocational rehabilitation, which was based on the doctor’s p.lan of having het‘ attempt a return to
work. Petitioner chose Steven Blumenthal as a vocational counselor, but Respondent would not
authorize it. Respondent indicated that they would only pay for Vocamotive, Inc., to be
Petitioner’s vocational counselor. (T. 117-118)

On April 28, 2014, she was evaluated by Vocamotive. The initial evaluation took a
couple of hours. After that evaluation, there were no further requests that she return for any
training or job placement. Petitioner received. a report that indicated she bad lost access to any
viable labor market with her condition. (T. 118)

On May 2, 2014, she saw Dr. Lubenow, and he provided her with various perme.nent
restrictions that included working a 3-4-hour work day, driving for no more than 15 minutes,
sitting .30 to 40 minutes and then changing positions, standing only 10 to 15 minutes at a time,
using a scooter for local transport, and .using a cane to walk short distazi_ces. 'AII this was in
ad.d_i:tion to a 20-Ib. lifting restriction. (T. 119) The staff at Vocemotive,' ne_ver_.asked her to
returh there or to conduct a job Search. She coritinued to receive her workers’ compehsation
beneﬁts as she was off work and was havmg her medications titrated by Dr. Lubenow (T. 120)

Resﬁondent then chose to have Pet1t1oner evaluated by a forensxc rehabilxtatlon spemalxst
named “EVR, Ine.” Petxtioner m1t1ally objected to undergomg an add1t10nal vocatxonal
evaluatlon but agreed to sit for the ﬁrst meetmg Swh meetmg took appr0x1mateiy 40 - 45

mmutes Aﬁer the meetmg, no one from EVR or any other vocatmnal facﬂxty asked her to

perform a job search (T. 120- 121)
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On October 10 2014 she was exammed agam by Dr Konowﬁa who was one of
ReSpondent 8 Sectton 12 physrcrans Th1s was his second exammation of her (T 122)

By 2015 Petrtloner contmued to receive workers compensatton ‘oeneﬁts and contlnued
under the care of Dr Lubenow Regardmg her mtratheeal pump, they arranged to use an .out31de |
source to come to her home and fill the pump ’i‘he purnp must be reﬁlled wrth OplOldS every 6 7 _.
weeks. Meanwhﬂe, she would see Dr Lubenow every 6- 9 months (T 123) Durmg thrs penod
of time, her condrtton remamed stable (T 124) What she notlced about herself is that she. '
always had to decrde what she would do that day If she extended herself she would be “out of :
it” the next day ?et1t10ner testrﬁed she isin bed for a lot of the day because of the pam and has
' only SO many boluses to use throughout the day So she has to plan what she is gomg to wear.
She usually wears hght ﬂa.nnel pajarnas because she cannot wear elasttc She doesn t wear a bra,

d showenng is no Ionger a necessrty (T 124 125) Showenng was drfﬁeult because she can t
have the water touch her back So washmg her han' is dafﬁcult and showenng is exhaustmg As
for cieanmg the house, 1f she cleaned the bathroom she wouldn t be able to do anythmg the next
day. She cannot do the ﬂoors or vacuum as 1t is too parnful and increases the pam (T 1 26)

On March 26 2015 she went back to Dr Konow1tz Respondent’ Sectton 12 physmran
for another exammatlon | |

The EVR report suggested that Petmoner may benefit frorn a second dnvmg evaluataon :
whrch she underwent on }une 30 2015 {T 127) She was at Mananjoy for an hour or so and was
in the vehrcle for 20 nunutes She tlunks she dld 10 mmutes w1th her feet and then lO mmutes. .
.wrth her hands usmg the’ hand controls on the vehrcle The use of hand controls d1d not extend _

the length of ttrne she was able to dnve and the evaluator never recommended full-tlme use of

13
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the hand controls. The evaluator only continued to recommend local dll'iv.i'ng. He did not
recommend eny further sessions of driving instruction after that. (T. 128)

| Petitioner testi.ﬁed about a December 16, 20§5 1ettef she received frem Bonr_lie Jordan of
Echo Joint A.g.;reement. (Px. 29, T. 13 I-.132) In that lette_r, Ms Jordan d_irect'ed.he‘r to come back
to work at sedenfary duty, which would include sitting, standing and walking, for 8 hours a day.
Ms. Jordan offered her 1 of 2 positions: a PAEC Scﬁo_oi Teacher or an AFL Instructional
Assistant. (T. 133) In other words, 1 job offer was that of a Special E_d_uéation Teacher at the
elementary school and the other job offer was that of an Aide at the Academy for Leaming.

Based upon the letter, Petitioner met with Ms Jordan, Carhda ‘Goodley, and her
bbyﬁ1end, William Izzo. During the meeting, the AFL aide’s job was offered to her, but the
teaeher’s ﬁositien was ot offered to her. (T. .134) The resﬁ‘ictions listed in the letter did not
come from Dr. Lubenow. Dr. Lubenow, her treater, continued to restrict her to a 3-4 hour work
day with 15 minutes of driving, 30 — 45 minutes of sitting at a time, 10 to 15 minutes of standing
ata time use-of her scooter for local tran3p0rt and use of her cane for walking short distances.
However none of these restnchons were hsted in the letter, (T. 135)

Pet1t10ner testiﬁed that she retumed to work with restnctlons (T. 138) On the first day, it
took her I hour and 15 mmutes to drive to the school because she needed to stop since she ‘was
unable to SIt that Iong She had pam from pushmg the pedal (T. 139) Her attempt to return to
work lasted approx1mately 5 weeks durlng whxch she was able to drwe to work 8- 10 tnnes (T.
140) It would always take her in’ excess of an hour to get to the school When she would dnve._
horne, it Would take her 1 hour and 15 mmutes and sometxmes over 2 hours due to trafﬁc stops
an_d her owr_l.stops.- (T.--_ -141) Qn the dates she n_e_eded _to__ get to s_eh_o_o_l _and_ get home__wlt_hout

driving, she would ask either her sister Beth, who works at AFL, to drive her there, or one of her
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kldS or her boyfnend Once at the facthty, she "used a wheelchatr or her cane or recewed '
a351stance from an Aide _’I‘he type of assrstance she used depended on how far around the
buxldmg she needed to go Her 51ster Beth would also help her dunng the day as she also
worked at AFL. (T 142) ' _

On I anuary 11 2016 she had a meetmg w1th Wayne Dendler, the pnnc1pa1 of the
Academy for Learrnng (T 144) Mr Dendler had dlrect supervrsmn over her and told her that
she would be asmgned as an A1de s pos1t10n 1n the art room of Hugh Cannon, the Art 'I‘eaeher
(T 144) Mr. Dendler restncted her in that he d1dn t want her in the haliway W1th the ch11drcn and
drd not want her 1o have any contact w1th the students whatsoever In the art room she was
posztroned in the back of the classroom w1th a desk surrounded by boxes that were hlgher than
the desk and between her and the students (T. 145) |

Petmoner ‘was shown Petittoner s Exhtblt 30, Wthh 1s a _]Ob descrlptton for an
“Instructlonal Paraprofessmnal” (T 146) The restncttons of an’ Instructlonal Paraprofessronal
1nc1uded hftlng the students and parttmpatlng in the phys1ca1 restramts of students She was also
requlred to stay there from the beglnmng of the ﬁrst pertod to the ﬁnal penod of the day. (T.
153) Durmg the second penod she would often put up her. feet ina rechmng type chair that they
gave her or else g0 to the nurse’s ofﬁce where there was a bed that she was able to use. She
needed to get the we1ght off her feet in order to control some of her pam (T 154) Whlle
' asstgned to Hugh Cannon s classroom she was told by Mr Cannon that he dldn t want her domg
| anythmg but s1tt1ng behmd her desk and havmg conversatrons w1th her students in thc classroom :
She could retl thern that they were domg a nice ]ob and ask them to get off thelr phones (T 156-
157) She had actual phys1cal contact w1th 4 students and she came frcm behmd her desk and _

would help them w1th thetr pro;ects Th1s was 1 penod 5 tlmes a week (T. 158) She notrced'
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that her pain was increasing and that she was having a harder _time sitting and standing. She was
also heving a hard time getting her pain to decrease from the 7-8 level. (T. 159) For Mr. Cannon,
she probab:!y wrote up 2-3 behavior feports based on stude_nt’s misbeha\}i_or duﬁeg the class. (T.
159) She also worked with the laminating machine and a COpier, whic'h.invoived reading the
manual and teaching Mr. Cannon. During the first week, she was able to work 4 out of the 5
days bot by Friday, she had to take off work because she could not get out of bed. (T. 160) She
was unable to get out of bed due to the pain and the faot that she could not sl.eep during the night.
| On January 13, 2016, Petitioner testified, her sister’s nose Was broken_during a fight in
the hallway with a student. (T. 162) Petitioner testified that she wa_s in tears agd upset because of
the appearance of her sister and ﬁer. broken nose. .She we.s physicaily feeli_ng pain t‘off the
charts” | because | she was upset. Aroond 11:00 that moming, she saw Bonnie Jordan for
approximately 3 to 4 minutes in her classroom. (T. 166 — 167) During that time, her emotional
state was that she was upset although she was not crying anymore. (T. 167} Ms. Jordan made a
comment about how great she looked and how well she was _doing in the classroom.
| During the Secoed week of her return to wo.rk M.aftin. Luther King Day was ceiebrated on
the Monday She was onIy able to work 2 out of the 4 rernammg days that week due to pam and
her mabxhty to get out of bed (T 168) At that time, she was nnabie to get the pam under control
| hke she usually could on a regular day
: In the third Week she Worked the entlre week 5 days (T. 169—170) Durin.g this final
week her condmon changed in that she started to get headaches and started getting sack to her _
stomach When she got home from work she went directly to bed to. prepare herself for the next

day at work (T 170) AIso, durmg the ﬁnai week she was not sleepmg more than 1-2 hours a
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n1ght and was vomrtmg She could not brlng her pam down even to a 5 The paln escalated all
the time - - even on weekends (T. 171) | |

Mr Dendler had an opportumty to see her on a daily basis while she was at the school
(T. 172) | |

On February 12, 2016, she saw Dr. Lubenow and desonbed to him her condition dunng_
her attempt to return to work. - Dr Lubenow oprned that she was perrnanenﬂy and totally
dlsabled Petltroner prov1ded the report of that visit t0 her employer Smee February 12, 2016
Pet1troner has not returned to work in any capacrty and has not recelved any pay from workers
compensatron or ﬁ'om ECHO (T 173- 174) | _ |

Ina ietter dated Aprll 4 2016 ﬁ'om Bonnle Jordan at ECHO to her, she was notrﬁed that
her posmon was termlnated based on Dr. Lubenow s oprmons (Px 32, 1. 174)

Smce she was tenmnated from her employment w1th Respondent she has been
‘maintaining her regrmen ‘of using the mtrathecal pump and gettmg it ﬁlled by an outsrde facﬂtty
that comes to ‘her home She testrﬁed that she returns to Dr Lubenow in9 rnonths . or sees_
h1rn every 6 months to a year. (T 175) Dr. Lubenow gives her oral medxcatxons and gwes her
prescrlptlons for the m—horne pump reﬁll (T 17 5) She gets reﬁlls every 6 7 Weeks Around
Decernber 28 2016, she had an unfortunate merdent the pump shut down, whloh caused her to
go. into w1thdrawa1 and requlred her to have the pump replaced by Dr Lubenow at Rush (T |
17 7) Smce that tnne her regrmen of mtratheoal pump use has contmued She contmues to t}ns
day to be on the same schedule The beneﬁt she recerves from the mtrathecal pump is that she is
rnore funetxonal wrth it, although xt does not take away her pam The purnp gtves her 2—5 hours_ |

in the day to mamtam her pam and keeps her from gorng to an 8/ 10 on the pain scale (T 17 8)
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Petitioner testified that she notices that everything is a cho_re. She must limit her
activities and if she does something one day, she casnot do it the next day. She has a hard time
sleeping, sittihg, and standing and does a lot of TV wetching, Her secia{ life 1s gone, With
regard to the paiﬁ in her body, she notices that the backside of both of her legs are constantly
burning, and that the more she does, the greater the burning, to the point that it feels like the area
is on fire. (T. 179) In her sit bones, she feels like she is sitting on concrete all the time and that
she can actually feel the bones rubbing on the concrete if she s.its for 5 minutes. Therefore, she
brings eushiens with her wherever she goes. As for her lower back, she notices that the pain
goes straight across the lower back and is constant. (T. 180) The constant pain feels like
stabbing and sometimes like electrical pain. She feels sensitivity from her shoulder blades down
to her lower back so that if someone comes frmﬁ behind and touches her, her nerves just scream
and will make her cry because of the severe shock of pain she feels. (T. 181) Likewise, putting
on clothing is painful. It is not worth the pain to put on a bra. The last time she drove a car was
in 2016 Instead her daughter her boyfriend, her sister or her mom drives her where she needs
to go. If the dnve is w1th1n a 1ocal area, for example to Walmart she can do it but if it is for
1onger than a IO—mmute penod she notlces that thc pain increases, and she eventuaily 1oses her
concentration. (T. 183) Wlth regard to her abzhty to walk she finds that it depends on the day.
Now she forces herself to walk 3 times a week w1th her. usual tnp gomg to,, and walkmg
through, A1d1 S, She walks through the axsles and walks with a cane. If she needs to go farther
-d1stances she uses her scooter Shc ty'pxcaily uses the scooter on a weekly bams (T 184-185)
| For s1ttmg, she can sxt 15- 20 mmutes before she stax’{s to shift and then she has less and
less time to sit durmg the rest of the day because the pam sIowa increases. Her pain is in her sit

bones and in the lower back With regard to standlng, she can stand for 10 15 mmutes The pain
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slowly 1ncreases when she is standmg, she can start feehng the pam aﬁer probably 5 mmutes of
standtng

Wlth regard to her sleeh, she wakes up because of the pam and needs to conttnne
reposrtlonmg herself (T 186)

She and her boyfrrend erham Izzo, have not had sexual mtercourse for 3.4 years
Before March 2009 they were able to have sexual 1ntercourse and be physrcal with each other _
(T. 187) Today, they cannot touch or hug or lay on each other because the pam is too great that
pain has Stayed the same to the present time. (T. 187 )

Accordtng to Respondent s union contract whlch isin effect Petrttoner would be earmng
$66, 626. 00 as a Specral Educatron Teacher (T 190) As a Teachrng Assrstant (an “Atde”,) she
would be earrnng $23,727. 00, (T. 192, Px. 35) PR

On Ccross- exammatron, Petrtroner agreed that after her March 23 2009 accrdent she was
able to get up from the pallet Jack wrthout any help (T. 196) She drd not start to feel somethmg
in her body untﬂ she got on the bus and rode back to school (T 197) |

' Slnce the 2009 accrdent the pam which started in her back and went down to her 1egs
has been the same Wrth the use of the mtrathecal pump, she notlces that the 1nten51ty of the pain
is dtfferent because the patn Now ranges between a4 and a’l. (T 202)

When Dr Konowrtz Respondent s Sectton 12 physrcran mrtrally exatmned her, he had
_her walk a strarght hne He aiso exammed her hands Dr Konowrtz exammed her 2 or 3 trmes
He personaliy exarnmed her for about 10 mmutes eaeh trme (T 204) | |

When she saw Dr Obolsky she had a2- day exam. She rerterated that on the ﬁrst day,

there was a Wrrtten test and the second day, Dr. Obolsky mtervrewed her for approxtmatety 1

howr. (T. 2_06)
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When she retumed to work in January - February of 2016, she had a conference with
Principal Dendler about the restrictions she had been given. (Px. 31.). In fact, the School District
honored those restrictions and did not go beyond any of the restn'ctioris stated m Px. 31, (T.212)
Those restrictions included using cushions when seated, using a cone wh.exi. wal.king, as needed,
using a wheelchair for long distances, using an electﬁc scooter, taking breaks, as needed, laying
down in the nurses office, as needed during the plan period or duty-free lunch period, staying out
of the hallways when the students are present, not physically managing the students, and not
performing any heavy lifting, (T. 212) ,

While she worked with Mr. Cannon in the Art Room, Ashe, in fact, performed work for
him that included speaking with students. (T. 213)

With regard to the modified-duty job given to her in february 2016, she does not think
she could handle that job, even with the restrictions, today. She cannot handle the modified-duty
job because of the number of hours she must work and the drive to and from work. (T. 214)

The pain from driving comes from usmg her leg to contmuously push down the pedal and
sitting. The pam frorn dnvmg is in her back her bottom, and her lcgs but not in her arms or her
shoulders. (T. 216) As a passenger in a car, she can ride for a fow hours dependmg on the day.
(T. 2'17')' - | |

Petxtloner testiﬁed that Dr. Lubenow ﬁas never discussed the idea of weanmg her off the
medlcme in her 1ntrathecal pump (T 219 220) ’I‘hey have d1scussed lowenng some of her oral

_ medlcatlons although those medlcatxons do not do. the same thmg as the medmme in the pump, as
they work in 2 different ways (T 220) | |

- On redxrect exam:natton, after revwdrmg P); 27, aletter to her frorn Respondent that was

dated June 7, 2011 Petmoner testxﬁed that it was her understandmg Respondent termmated her
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employment and would not allow her to return to work w1th any restnctlons (T 220—221) She .
did not contmue to receive beneﬁts from Respondent The letter 1nd1cates that 1f she dld wish to.
return to work for Respondent she would have to reappiy for employment and watas not .
guaranteed a pos1tton {(T. 222) Petlttoner further testlﬁed that glven the accommodatlons made
by Mr Dendler (Px 36 Dep Ex. 2, or Px 31) she was unable to contlnue workmg for .
Respondent aﬁ:er 5 weeks (T 222 223) Pettt;oner further teshﬁed that she underwent 2 dnvmg |
tests and aﬁer usmg the hand controls on at 1east 1 test found that she was not able to dnve any
farther w1th the use of hand controls Aﬁer the 1nstructor tested her w1th the ha.nd controls, he
d1d not recommend that she use hand controls to contmue to dnve and dzd not say she needed to
retum for further testlng or tralmng (T 223 224) | |

On TECross exammatlon, Petmoner testxﬁed.that she was unable to contlnue workmg aﬁer
-5 weeks in the modxﬁed pos1tton due to the pam Before that 5~week penod she had not worked
8 hours a day and had not dnven Pet1t1oner test1ﬁed that the pam she expenenced dunng the 5-
week perlod was gettmg worse She was expenenomg headaches By the last week of the 5
weeks, Petitloner testrﬁed she was vomttlng and was havmg a hard time eatmg So, there were

other_ symptoms beyond the paln_. (T.225-227)

- TeSﬁnion'x of Elizabeth P-ier_sialka

Ellzabeth Pter31alla, a Specxal Educatlon Teacher at ECHO J omt Agreement and

':Z Petltxoner s s1ster testlﬁed on Petltioner s behalf (T 230 231) Ms Pzersxalla testlﬁed that in
the 5 years leadmg up to Petmoner s acc1dent in 2009 Petlttoner Was actlve in hlgh school She
played on the soﬁ‘oall team m coilege contmued to play soﬂball and regularly played volleyball

_'m a Weekly 1eague (T 232) Ms Pxersxaila found Petttmner to be mentaliy ﬁt and sharp pnor to
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March 2009. (T. 232) Ms. Piersialla noticed th.at. from.the time of the accident to the beginning of
2016, she ootice& that Petitioner seems to tire rrtuch more quickly z.md. is always in.pain if anyone
| totiches her. (T. 232) There Have been ocoaSions when eomeone who hasn’t seen her goes up to
gitfe hera hug ond she will yell for quite 5 while aftérwards. She appears to be in a lot of pain

from the hug. (T. 233)

Ms. Piersialla was present for Petitioner’s attempted return to work for 5 weeks in early
2()16 Spec:ﬁealiy, Ms. Piersialla recalled an incident on J: anuary 13, 2016 where she herself
was struck bya student in the haiiway The student broke Piersialla’s nose. While Piersialla
walted to go to the hospltai she was visited by Petttloner Ms. Piersmlla testlﬁed that Petitioner

appeared to be very frantlc and emottonaliy upset at that time. (T 235)

On Febmary 12, 2016, Ms. Piersialla drove Petitioner to her appointment with Dr,
Lubenow due to increasing pain. Since that appointment to the present time, she has never
known Petitioner to be able to drive herself. Either Bill, Petitioner’s boyfriend, or Ms. Piersialla

drives Petitioner around. (T. 239)

Ms. 'Piersialla notes that Petitioner is better able to 'contr'ol her pain'. since the insertion of
the mtrathecal pump (T 240) She further testiﬁed that w1th the beneﬁt of her mtrathecai pump,
Petmoner can 51t in a chair for 3-4 hours w1th the famﬂy and she will be okay, she wﬂi tolerate
.the pam (T. 240) Ms P1ersxalla testiﬁed that Petlttoner E mental acmty 1s not as good as it was
' before the aceldent and that a Iot of the time, the medlcation does not help (T 240) As a

passenger ina car, Petmoner is abie to nde along w1th her for 30 45 mmutes (T. 242)

| On redtrect Ms Piersmlla testlﬁed that Petltxoner must move posmons a lot, whlch would

melude gomg from stttmg to standlng (T 244)
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Testlmonv of Wllham Izzo

erham Izzo a pohce ofﬁcer for the Vlllage of Lyons, also testrﬁed on behalf of |
Petrtroner Mr Izzo testtfxed that for almost 12 years, he has been Petrtroner $ boyfnend (T.
245 —246) Up untrl Mareh 2009 he would see her almost every day, although they were not hvmg
together (T 246) Durmg the time he saw her, up untﬂ March 2009 the two of them Would do
everythmg from boatmg, motorcycimg, 1ay1ng patto blocks, patntmg, scrapmg fences pamtmg
msrde rooms and walkmg wrth the krds and her fnends He. had a hard ttme keepmg up wrth |
her (T 247) Aiso pnor to Maroh 2009 they had a sexual relatronshrp (T 247 ) Smce her second
mjury, thelr sexual acttwty has gotten less and less untd there is none. (T 253 254) Frorn March .
2009 to J anuary 2016 her eondrtron progressrvely detenorated From her ﬁrst tnjury, she had'
pams m her chest and from her seeond mjury, she had pams 1n her back gomg down mto her_
:'. -buttocks (T 248) Smce the second 1n3ury, he beheved they could not do anythmg sexually, she
' couldn t go on the motorcycle, she couldn t go boatrng, she couidn t walk or do all the physwal
actlvrtres she used to do. (T 248) When they tned to do physrcal actrvrties together she would
say. that 1t was pamﬁxl (T 2438- 249) She was frustrated both emottonally and physrcally,
because she never really bounced back aﬂer the i mjury (T 249) | |
Dunng the 5 weeks she went back to work she Was reaehmg for the bolus all the trme
wh11e laymg down He was forced to get up at a certam time and had a iot of trouble getttng her
-- ready for work When she came home she had a breakdown He could teﬂ that she was * spen
: and had nothmg leﬁ in her (T 251) .
Smce berng home from work Petttloner 1s able to get out of bed although she does. not
do so untrl 10 00 or ir 00 Now she can avoui overstressrng or overworkmg She can eontrol _

her paln a lot better now and she can take a break if she needs to 1ay down She is able to cook'
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and clean a little bit. (T. 252) Depending on the day, she can use a hght httle vacuum on the
floor for 10-15 minutes. (T. 261) If she does too much, she pays for it later. (T. 261-262) Mr.
Izzo noticed that since Petitioner attempted to return to work in 2016, he- has not known her to
clrive hersel_f any_Wliere. (T. 252)

l\’lr. Izzo testified that he takes her to the grocery store and to do errands. When he drives
her, he often brings her scooter with him. When she is walking, she needs to have her cane. (T.
253) There are tilmes.that she walks with her cane rather than ride her seoo:ter, such as when she
is in the grocery store. (T. 258) They have been out of state with each other to Benton Harbor,
which was about a 1% hour drive. (T. 256-257) When he drives her, there are times that he must
s.top to let her get. out and walk. (T. 259-260) They woold have to stop 2-3 times so that she

could get out and walk. As long as she can stop and take breaks and lay down, they can drive 1-2

hours together,

Degosition Testimonx of Marie Kirincic, ML.D.

Dr. Kmncxc is a physmlan who is board certlﬁed in physical medlcme and rehabthtatlon
as Well asin pam management (Px 23 Dep Ex. l) Dr. Kzrmcw completed her Pain Fellowslup
at the Rehabihtatlon Instxtute of Clncago Chromc Pam Care Center Dr.. Kmncw began treatzng
Petltloner on Apnl 9 2009, w1thm weeks of her March 23 2009 mjury She contmued to treat

Petstxoner through the time that Dr Lubenow took over Petxtloner E care.

Dr. Kmncm ordered an EMG of her Iower extrermtles and mterpreted the ﬁndzngs as

follows |
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“The needhng part was abnormal on her bﬂateral and paraspmal So, itwas .
suggesttve of Sl the sczatlca The true sc1atlca of 81 btlateral lateral and

then nght at ieast mﬂamed nerve or some 1rr1tat10n to the nerve. - (Px. 23, . 61)

Dr Kmncm testiﬁed that Petxtroner was not abie to return to work ina full duty caoacxty |
in 2009 (Px. 23, p 41) Further, Petlttoner was not at MMI and requtred addltlonal patn o
management treatment (Px 23 p- 89) Dr Kirincic d1agnosed Petrttoner as suffenng ﬁom 4
atyp1ca1 CRPS that was causally reiated to the March 23 2009 mjury (Px 23 pp 76, 103) She
opmed that Petlttoner had degeneranve changes at LS Sl and a probable dlsc mjury and that the
dlscogemc component of her pam started a couple of months post 1n3ury The EMG was p051t1ve
for some 1rr1tatron from the SClatIC nerve on both 31des (Px 23 P 106) Dr Kmncm testlﬁed that
CRPS can affect a pattent’s torso (Px 23, p. 52) and that Petttloner $ condttton is causally related
' to the March 23 2009 mc1dent blunt trauma betng the most common cause of CRPS (Px 23
pp. 37-38) Durmg her exammattons, Petrtloner complamed of aliodyma, hyperpatlua, burmng
pam and radlatmg paln Dr Kmnolc documented weakness (Px. 23 P 14), multlple trtgger
pomts (Px 23 p- 72), hmlted lumbar range of motton (Px 23,p. 60), hyperludrosxs/abnonnal

sweating (Px 23, P. 76) and temperature dysregulatlon (Px 23 - 76)

Dr. Kmncrc further testtﬁed that the treatment performed by I—Imsdale Orthopaedtc

Assomates, Dr Gelband Dr Tumlm, Dr Gruft and RIC was reasonable and necessary (Px 23,

p. 90)

On cross-exammatton, Dr Kmncrc test1ﬁed that the staff at RIC thought there was a
temperature dlfferenoe, but never really documented it. She testtﬁed that an EMG is not a test

for CRPS but for anerve 1n_]ury She testtﬁed that a tngger pornt 1n_1ect10n can serve asan
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objective test. Dr. Kirincic testified that Petitioner has CRPS in the torso. Lastly, Dr. Kirincic
testified that Petitioner is still able to work at least part time. (Px. 23,"pp. 91-11 5) On redirect

examination, Dr. Kirincic testified that Petitioner favors the RIC treatment regimen versus the

Rush Pain Center regirnen. (Px. 23, pp. 120-121)

Deposition Testimony of Timothy R. Lubenow, M.D.

Dr. Lut)endw is board-certified in anesthesi.ology as well as pain management. (Px. 24, p.
5, Px. 24, Dep. Ex. 1) He has been working in a private practice end ina teeching capacity at
Rush University Medical Center. (Px. 24, p.12)Heisa Full Pfefes'sof of 'anesthesiology at Rush
Medical Coliege (Px. 24, Dep. Ex. 1) He is trained in the use of 0p101d medlcatlon and
medlcatxon dehvery systems. (Px. 24, p. 14) Dr. Lubenow S 28-page cumculum vitae is
extensive and includes research on CRPS and lectures on the management of RDD/CRPS. Dr.
Lubenow testified that CRPS is diagnosed by utilizing criteria of the patient showing 3
symptoms and having 2 physical ﬁndmgs on exam. (Px. 24, p. 11) Dr. Lubenow testified that
CRPS isa neurologmal pam dlsorder that is charactenzed by the presence of such things as
complaznts of hypersens1t1v1ty, complamts of swellmg, complamts of d1scolorat1on hmzted range

of motxon, dxfference in hair and nail g_rowth and asymmetrical temperature ﬁndmgs. (Px. 24, p.

20) |

Dr Lubenow testlﬁed that he has worked over 30 years at the Rush Pain Center. (Px 24,
P 12) He testlﬁed that he has treated tens of thousands of patients wzth chromc paln condlt.lons.-
’He has treated 1000 to 2000 patlents w1th the use of an 1ntrathecal pump He further testxﬁed
that he currentiy has approxxmately 250 patlents that he treats thh use of an mtrathecai drug

'dehvery system (Px 24 p 16)
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Dr Lubenow has been Petmoner S treatlng pam.specrahst s1r1ee October 2010 (Px 24 p.
17 ) Dr Lubenow was the physwran agreed upon by Petrtloner and Respondent after Respondent
derued the referral to Mayo Chmc Durmg his physrcal exammatrons of Petitloner he noted
she had srgmﬁcant dlffuse allodyma (hypersens1t1v1ty) from her luo‘lbar to lower cervrcal spme,
mgmﬁcant allodyma of her lower lumbar vertebral region and sensrtrvrty to the posterlor aspeet.
of her th1ghs (Px 24 pp 18 25) He also noted abnormal haxr growth on Petltloner s thzghs as
weil as mechamcally measured temperature dtfferences of L. 5°C to l 8°C (p 26) Dr Lubenow
testzﬁed that thlS d1d meet the crrterra for CRPS (Px 24 pp 74 100) Dr Lubenow testlﬁed |
that allodyma was a constant ﬁndmg and that the others were not always present at all

exa;tnmatlons Therefore he has always referred to Pet1t1oner s dragnosrs as atyprcal CRPS (Px.

2, 7. 104)

Petrtloner also had pos1t1ve fmdmgs of Sl radrculopathy in her low back Dr. Lubenow
testlﬁed that Pet1t1oner was vulnerable to thrs type of nerve 1njury from the March 23, 2009
acmdent (Px 24 p 19) Dr. Lubenow testlﬁed

Her current eondrtlon of 1ll—be1ng is atyprcal complex regronal pam
syndrome, or altematrvely one may refer to itas a neu.ropatluc pain

condrnon of the low back lu:mbar spine and legs bﬁaterally, she has a
_ _secondary dragnosxs of brlateral S 1 radlculopathy (Px 24, p 72)

Dr Lubenow noted that the EMG was Obj ectrve ev1dence of a neuropatluc pam due to the

S lRadlculopathy (Px 24 p 72)

On February 27 2{)12 Dr Lubenow 1mplanted a permanent mtrathecal pam pump in
Petltloner, whlch was authorlzed by Respondent after utlhzatlon review. (Px 24 PP 38 40)

The mtrathecal pump allows 0p101d medrcatron to bypass Petltioner s GI system and

27



20IWCC0335
cardiovascular system, (Px. 24, p. 42) Thereafter, he and his associates continued to titrate

Petitioner’s medications to achieve the best pain control. (Px. 24, p. 59)

In August 2012 Dr. Lubenow referred Petitioner for an FCE that was found to be valid.
The FCE evaluator hn‘uted Petltloner to 4 hours of work per day and limited her to light-duty
work. (Px. 24, p. 45) Heordered a dmvmg evaluation at Marianjoy. The tester concluded that
Petitioner could only safely dnve for periods of 20 minutes locally due to sxttmg tolerances
without the use of adaptive gear or additional training. (Px. 24, ‘p. .5 1) A subsequent FCE,
though conditionally valid, demortstrated the same gederal restrictions. Baeed oo these results,
Dr. Lubenow advised vocational rehabilitation. (Px. ..24, p 51} He tecommeuded a strict 3-hour
work day limitation and 15-minute local driving limitation. (Px. 24, p. 60) Petitioner was
allowed to use a cane for short distances and a scooter for longer di stance. .(Px. 24, p. 57) During

that period Dr. Lubenow allowed refills of the pump to be done in Petitioner’s home via various

providers. (Px. 24, p. 58}

On February 12, 2016, Petitioner returned to Dr. Lubenow after having attempted a return
to work for the prekus five weeks (Px 24 p. 64) Dr. Lubenow noted Petitioner complamed of
mcreasmg pam in her back and legs wzth new pam in her mld-thoramc area and bummg in her
buttocks (Px 24 p- 64) Her pam was mcreasmg and was 1o longer under control. Dr. Lubenow
noted that Respondent’s exarmmng physwzan Dr Konomtz had removed any drwmg

| restnctlons and work hour restrtcno_ns even though Dr. Konothz had prev1ousiy agreed witﬁ
such restnctions Dr Lubenow dlsagreed w1th the removal of those restnctmns and’ chscussed
wzth Petltioner her attempted retum to work He noted that Petmoner was havmg dlfﬁculty
controil_mg her p.am wh_de_ drtvmg be_yond the restn_etlo_ns he 1mposed_. Petttlon_er_ was to be
allowed to lay dovtfn a_t work for over an hour per daj;. At Work she had no contact with students
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' and performed 11tt1e to no aetual work (Px 24 P 65) Durmg hlS exammatlon of her, Dr |
Lubenow noted hmpmg, slow galt moreased allodyma on Petlttoner s Iow to m1d baek and L
saeral area. (Px 24 p 65) He noted mcreased sensatlon to the apphcatwn of an alcohol pad on
Petrtroner s legs wh}ch he found to be conﬁrmatron of nerve dysﬁmctlon (Px 24 p. 66) Dr.
Lubenow found Petmoner $ condltlon to be cons1stent Wlth ehromc atyprcal CRPS worse since
her return to work (Px 24, p 66) He offered a secondary d1agnos1s of brlateral S- 1
radrculopathy Based upon hls course of care, Dr Lubenow found Petrtloner to be permanerttty

and totally d1sabled (Px 24 p 67)

Dr Lubenow testtﬁed that Petttloner does not have 0p101d 1nduced hyperesthesra (Px 24 _
pp. 66 81) He bases hxs conelusron on the small dose of oplold Petltroner 1s recemng (Px 24 p.
- _66) the fact that he has specrﬁcatly tested Petltloner for th1s condltmn (Px 24 pp 82 97) and
'- .hlS expenence treatmg pattents w1th 0p101d mduced hyperesthesm numerous trmes in hrs career ,
(Px. 24 p 80) Dr Lubenow found that Petlttoner is at MMI (Px 24 p 86), that she is unable to
return to gamﬁ.ll employment (Px 24 p 86), that she wdi requu‘e contmumg treatment wrth use
of the mtratheeal pump and oral medwatzons (Px 24 p 87), that the eontmued use of OplOldS in
the mtrathecal pump is w1thm the guldehnes of evrdence-based rnedrcme (Px 24 p 79) and that :

Petltaoner s cond1t1on is causally related to the March 23 2009 work accrdent (Px 24 p 7 5)

On cross exammatlon, Dr. Lubenotv testrﬁed that he could alternatlvely dlagtose |

- -_Pet1tloner w1th neuropatiuc pam syndrome (Px 24 p 90) Dr Lubenow testrﬁed that as of

J anuary 2011 the ob;eetrve srgn for Petrttoner was an abnormai EMG (Px 24 p 91) He also |
testrﬁed that the ﬁrst tune he evaluated ?ettttoner, he fou:od that she drd not rneet the Budapest | _
_ _'crrtena for CRPS At some later vrsrts however he found that she d1d have sut’ﬁaent physrcal

' -'exam ﬁndlngs to have met the Budapest cntena (Px 24 p 100) On redrreet exammatlon Dr.
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Lubenow testified that from the time he implanted the intrathecal pump in Petitioner he has
gtven her small doses of the opioid. (Px. 24, p. 105) thh regard to the issue of oplotd-mduced
hyperalgesia, durmg that time frame, Dr. Lubenow reduced some of the medlcatlons (Px.24,p.

90)

Report of Patricia Merriman, Ph.D.

Ina report dated March 23, 2016, Petitioner offered the response of Dr. Patricia
Merriman, Petitioner’s treating pain psychologist. (Px. 22) Dr. Merriman first notes that the
tcsting procedure documented by Dr. Obolsky is inappropriate to tely up_oh in reaching his final
coriclust_ons. (Px 22, p. 2) Ltketvise; mahy of the testé used are in'appropriate to apply to
Petitioner. Many of 'the. other'conciusions'ate incorrectly interpretcd given the facts surrounding
Petitioaer’s medtcal history. For example, there is no indication in her histoty that Petitioner was
experiencing psychological problems prior to her injury. Petitioner had not sought treatment, she
was workmg in a demandmg ;ob and her retationshtps with famtly and friends appear to have
been good Petltloner has stated that her life at the time of the i mjury was good She would like
to return to that hfe but the pam 1nterferes Dr Oboisky s report purports to test for malmgenng
| whtch accordtng to Dr Memman, is not possxbte to test for because 1t is not a dxagnosm
Somatoform dlsorders can ptay a roIe in Iegzttrnate pam condltlons Dr. Memman also Opmed
' that Petttloner has been dlagnosed as havmg a Ieg1t1mate medlcal condttlon that causes severe
__pam Whlch is not psychogemc but that thxs type of pam more than most, can be affected by
stress Dr Memman found that Pettttoner s report of dlstress has been congruent w1th her

situation'. (Px. 22) '
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Report by V'o_c_'at'iorral':Re_h'z_zbilitation Couns"e'l'or-at 'Vocamot_l_v;e.-lnc.

At the request of Respondent ] TPA on Apl‘il 28 2014 Petltroner presented to
vooatronal rehabihtatron counselor Lxsa Helma CRC at Vocamotlve Inc for vocatlonal |
rehabrhtaﬂon and possrble pIacement servrces (Px 21 p 13) Ms Helma stated that she
revxewed numerous medlcal records but w111 only drseuss in her report those records that pertam
to the employablhty Petitroner (Px 21 p 17) She revrewed the May 2 2014 restnctlons by Dr.
Lubenow the February 26 2014 medlcal note frorn Dr Lubenow the Ooto’oer 17 2013 FCE
whtch was consrdered to be a cond1t10na11y vahd” representatron of Pet1t1oner s physrcal
oapablhtles and the March 2, 2011 psychologlcal evaluatron ‘oy Dr. Patrlcta A Memman (Px
21 pp 17*1 8) The Arbrtrator notes that Ms Helma made no mentton of, inter al:a, the oprmons
of Dr Alexander E. Obolsky, Dr Mary L Moran, Dr chhard L Noren, and Dr Howard S.

: Konowrtz In addrt:on to consrderrng Petrtroner S ernploya‘mhty based on her physrcal
capabrhtles she consrdered Petltroner $ age educatronal stat:us vocatwnal hlstory, and
socweconomrc status (Px 21 pp 19—21) Ms. Helma found that gwen Petrtroner S dnvrrrg
restrlctrons and w1thout transportatlon assrstance, she would be hrmted to searchmg for
employment ina smali radrus around her home Ms Helrna concluded that Pettttoner has 1ost
access to her usual and customary hne of occupatlon of Specral Educatron Teacher She further |
eoncluded that grven the medtcal documentatlon avariable Petlttoner has lost access to a:ny-' |

_ vrable labor market and thus, found that her dlsabllrty rs total (Px 21 pp 24-25)

e .'Deg."ositiori Testir_dontr*of Fornre_rﬁPri_iici.bal' Waxg' _"e_ r)'ei:die'r o

Petltloner offers the testlmony of Wayne Dendler (Px 36) Mr Dendler was in the

ernploy of Respondent as the Prrncrpal at AF L frorn Juty 1 2006 through June 30 2017 (Px 36
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p. 5) During his tenure, he had the opportumty to observe Petitioner performmg her _]Ob duties on
a dally basis. He descnbed PththI‘lel’ as a competent and actlve Specxai Educat1on Teacher with
no hmxtanons pnor to her 2009 acmdents (Px 36 pp 7- 8) Mr Dendler test1ﬁed that when
Petitioner attempted to 1n1t1a1 return to work as a Spemai Edueatlon Teachei in 2010 she had
little energy, used a wheelchair to get around and had hmlted capacxty to teach her students and
engage in act1v1t1es Mr. Dendier described the students at AFL as havmg severe emot10nal and
control issues, whzch teachers at regular schools could not.control Violence by students was a

common occurrence. (Px. 36, pp. 10-11)

Mr. Dendler testified that he first learned that Petztloner was commg back to AFL in 2016
from Bonnie J ordan, Respondent s Assistant Director and Leanne Frost, Respondent s Director.
He was adv1sed that Petitioner was stxll being paid by ECHO and, therefore, th'ey were to find a
way to bring her back to work. Mr. Dendler testified that he objected to Petitioner’s return
because AF L was not appropnate due to safety concerns. (Px 36 p 16) Mr. Dendler identified
the neeessary dutles of an Atde to mclude the hftlng of a student but more 1mportantiy, the
active particlpation in physmal restramt of a student. (Px 36, p. 14} Further, an Alde is expected

1o contlnually mteract w1th students even if they are v1oler1t (Px 36 p 15)

Mr Dendler o‘oserved Petmoner on J anuary 11, 2016 the day she retumed to AFL as an
A1de He descnbed her as weak tn‘ed and wom out (Px 36 p 18) Petmoner was ass1gned to
_ .the art ciassroom and placed at a desk behmd the students and advxsed to avoxd any mteractlon
w1th the students (Px 36 p 18) Petltloner had no contact thh the students of the ciassroom
Petitloner was not perfomnng the dutles of an A1de (Px 36 p 20) He 1s aware of the J anuary
13 2016 1nc1dent when Petlttoner 'S 51ster Ehzabeth P1er51alla, was struck in the face by a

. student and sustamed a broken nose. (Px 36 p. 21) Mr Dendier testlﬁed that he was d1rected by



Bonme J ordan aud Leanne Frost to dehver the hst o”f faccor
Regardless of the accommodatrons Mr Dendler testlﬁed Pettttoner E physwal condttton -
detenorated over the 5 weeks she attempted to retum to work He noted that dunng hlS tenure as
Pnnelpal of AF L no ‘other employee was provrded such 31gn1ﬁcant acconnnodatrons and stﬂt
was aHowed to work asa Teacher or an A1de When he was eventuaily adv1sed that Pet1t1oner
was unable to contmue Workmg at AFL, Mr Dendler test1ﬁed he was not surpnsed as he felt she |

did not belong in that enwronment due to ‘her health (Px 36 p 25)

On eross exammatron, Mr. Dendler testrﬁed that although Respondent never put anythmg
in wrttrng snmlar to what they dtd wrth Petrtroner they have taken peopie back to work w1th ]Ob
accommodatlons Mr Dendier testtﬁed that Petltloner prov1ded mtmmai heip to the art teacher
" He knew that Pettttoner had pam due to her mjury and he was not sure 1t‘ she had a pam pump in
: her or not Mr Dendier d1d not thmk Petitloner could come baek to work w1th her restncttons
- beeause of the nature of the students in Respondent’s bu1ld1ng It does not matter where you are |
because the students don t care - - or, they could get ina physrcal altercatlon He also thought
Petlttoner could not _perform the dutles ofa Paraprofessmnal such as_ crrculat_mg a elass_room,
superuisin'g a'ha.l_.lway, 'or.super\.ri.sing the bus a.reas..'_(.P:s_t. 3.6_, PP 25;28j

On redlrect exammatron Mr Dendler testtﬁed that the rmmmai .pa.perwork Petttloner

| performed in the art elassroom con31sted of takmg attendance and maybe reeordmg asmgnments

.-_'m the computer (Px 36 p 29)
: Den_OSiﬁon 'resamoﬂg' af Ju’lie ie M. Wehner, M.D. |

Respondent offered the ev1dence deposmon of Dr. Wehner (Rx 3) Dr Wehner isa '

_board-certlﬁed orthopaedrc surgeon who concentrates on spme surgery (Rx 3 . 7 Dr Wehner
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noted that Petitioner had no prior htstory of chronic paln (Rx. 3, p. 11) Dr. Wehner examined
Petitioner on ) June 1, 2009, which was 1ess than 3 months after the March 23, 2009 incident. (Rx.
3,p.9 Dr. -Wehner found mild pain with 1ight palpation at ttte right parasptnal area at
approximately T12 and p_ai.n: underneath. the bra area of her chest. (Rx. 3, pp- 1 1-12) She noted
that Petitioner self-limited her range of motion. (Rx. 3, p. 12) Petitioner complained of a diffuse
pattern of pain in her thoracic, lumbar, chest and upper abdominal areas. (Rx. 3, pp. 13-14) Dr.
Wehner’s impression was that Petitioner had soft tissue contusions and sprains that would be
related to the accident, but continued compla.int‘s of pain that were not .explai‘ned by the accident.
(Rx. 3, p. 14) Dr, Wehner noted the MRI report 1ndxcated dlSC desmcatton at L5- Sl that was
mostly an anatomlc vanant ora normal agmg process, but not pathoiogm or chnrcaliy srgmﬁcant
{(Rx.3, p. 15) Based upon her examination of Petrtroner as well as a review of hrnrted records,
Dr. Wehner opmed Petitioner could return to full-duty work (Rx 3,p. 18) Dr. Wehner advised

ceasing chiropractic and acupuncture treatments, (Rx. 3, p. 19) and recommended she should

perform home exercises.

On cross-exammatlon Dr. Wehner testified that she conducts §12 examrnattons 100% of
the tlme for Respondents (Rx 3, p- 26) Dr Wehner testrﬁed that asof J une 1, 2009
Petitioner’s condttlon of ifl- belng dad appear to be causatly reIated to the March 23 2009 work
m_]ury (Rx 3, p 28) Dr Wehner testlﬁed to revrewmg records that were for another patlent (Rx.
3 p 28) She rev1ewed no treatmg records other than those subrnrtted at the 1n1t1a1 exammatton
Bt 1 months pnor to her deposxtxon (Rx 3 p 29) Dr Wehner felt that Pet;ttoner dxd recetve some
beneﬁt from chlropracttc treatment that 6 12 v1s1ts would be reasonable for patrents w1th soﬁ
tlssue m}unes but that 4-6 weeks would be reaSonable for patrents w1th a chromc, undertyrng

condrtron (Rx 3 p. 36) Dr Wehner d1d not ﬁnd that Pettttoner dehberately mlsrepresented her
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symptoms (Rx 3 p 36) Dr Wehner kncw that Petrhoner treated w1th the staff at RIC whom
she ﬁnds to be quahﬁed and competent (Rx 3, pp- 41, 3 |} Dr Wehner was unaware of the

spemﬁc treatment at RIC mcludlng any FCE results (Rx 3, pp 41, 3 1)

On redzrect exammatxon, Dr. Wehner testrﬁed that in formuiatmg her OplnlOI'lS she drd
not rely on the few documents that were for another pat1ent Such records were sent o her by

ATL (Rx 3 pp 44-45) On June 1 2009 when Petrtwner presented to her she drd nct have

chromc _pam. (Rx 3, p. 45)

: On recross exammatlon br Wehner testlﬁed that soft tlssue rnjurres can tum 1nto
chronic pain. (Rx 3, pp. 46 47) Dr Wehner testrﬁed that as of June 1, 2009 she d1d not thmk
_ that Petltloner was a candldate for the RIC pro grarn (Rx 3,p- 47) However Dr Wehner has no |
; .treatmg records or test results for anythmg that occurred atter qune 1 2009 (Rx 3 p 47) Fer a
_ condxtrcn to be chromc, Dr Wehner testlﬁed the pam has to 1ast at least 6 months (Rx 3 p 48) |

At the tlme she exarmned Petlttoner, Petttloner was 3 months post-accldent (Rx 3 p- 48)

On redlrect exanunatlon Dr Wehner test1ﬁed that a person can compiam of paln for 6
rnonths and have nothmg wrong wrth hnn (Rx 3 p 5 1) She testlﬁed that Petmoner s mJury was
not hke a crushmg mJury or somethmg that would lead you to beheve she had such soft trssue
mjunes that she Would end up w1th chromc pam She was knocked down There wasfho

. brutsmg and she had a full range of rnot1on (Rx 3 pp 51 52)

On redu'ect exammatlon Dr Wehner testrﬁed that Petltloner sustamed a trauma on

March 23 2009 but it was not enough to cause a chromc paln syndrorne (Rx 3 p 54)
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Deposition Testimony of Richard L. Noren, MLD.

Dr. No'ren is board—certiﬁed in oain mdnagement and anesthesiology (Rx. 9, pp. 5-7) He
was Professor in the Department of Anesthesiology between 1992 — 1993 at Emory University
School of Medwme Currently, Dr. Noren is in private practloe at Pain Care Consultants from
1995 to the present. (Rx. 9, p. 6)

On July 7, 2011, Dr. Noren testified that he saw the Petitioner for the first time for a
physical examination. She was 47 years old, left-hand dominant, we1ghed 136 1bs., and reported
that in March 2009, a student pushed her over a forklift while at a grocery store, so she hit the
back of the forklift. She fell so she was sitting on the forklift between the bars. She reported
treatment tnat included a 5-day epidural infusion at Rush Presbyterian Hospital. She was unable
to get of the bed for the first 2 days and did not complete dny' p'hy.s'ieai' therepy. She was also
scheduled for a trial of an intrathecal pump. She personally denied any upper or lower extremity
nail changes, though she reported sweating from her knees to her thighs and at times, her whole
body sweated. She denied any color changes. She states that her thighs were swollen, and they
had gone up a.pan.ts siZe. .(Rx. 9, pp. 10-12) Regarding her activities, she_:testiﬁed that she was

| lumted to waikmg for 5 to 15 mmutes When 51tt1ng, she frequentiy needed to chzmge posmons
and was not able to dnve due to medlcatrons and intermittent confus;on w1th the medlcattons
She sald that she Iast drove m the fall on 2010 (Rx 9 p 12) She reported that she uses a
wheelchatr when gomg grocery shoppmg and has severe body aches wrth proionged dtstances of
-waikxng Her eurrent medlcattons are Gahapentm, Cymbaita Hydrocodone, 3 to 6 tablets per
day, Tramadol 2to 4 tablets per day, Armtza Synthrmd and Trazodone (Rx 9, p 13)

Dunng hlS physual exarmnatlen Dr Noren testtﬁed her gart was norrnai She nad

dlfﬁculty standmg on her toes and reported pam over the Iatera! portton of her hlps, over the
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trochanterrc regton. when standmg on her toes T here was no allodynra in the upper extremttres .
and the lower extrermtres wrth repeated testrng Her back had severe allodyma in the thoracw _
and 1umbar regton to shght touch No color changes or swelhng was noted (Rx 9 pp 14~15) |
'On the motor exam she had normal motor strength n both upper and lower extremrttes
symmetnc reﬂexes and negattve stralght Ieg rarsmg There were equai temperatures m the
upper and lower extrermtres There was no swelhng in the upper or iower extrermttes and no nad _
changes Her 1egs appeared to be shaved She had normal pulses There was an edual vem'.
pattern in both of her feet And spemﬁc measurements of the upper and lower extremrtles
showed no measurabie edema (Rx 9,p. 15) At the end of her physwal exammatton he reached.
the concIusmn that he was unclear what her dtagnosxs was He recommended that she see a
rheurnatologlst for further evaluatlon as a source of explanatlon for parn syndromes (Rx 9 p
16) The sub;ectwe complamts she made 1nc1udrng the allodyma, were all related to her fall on_ |
.'.'March 23, 2009. {Rx 9, p 17) |

Dr Noren also had the oplmon that there were no obJ ectwe ﬁndmgs of complex reglonal
parn syndrome durmg hrs exarnmatron of the Petrtroner onJ uly 7 2011 (Rx 9,p.17) Dr Noren
tesnﬁed that of the Budapest cnterla to d1agr1031s CRPS she had the subjectwe ﬁndmg of .
allodyma but there were rmssmg srgns such as no temperature changes, edema, and no
vasornotor or sudomotor changes Her complamts of aﬂodyma 1n and of ztself could he any
3 _ dlsease but to draw the conclusron that 1t is CRPS or atyplcal CRPS is merely conjecture (Rx
9 p }8) Regardmg work Dr Noren testrﬁed that it was h1$ opmron that she was able to meet her |
]Ob descriptlon based upon the exam ﬁndmgs he had recetved {Rx 9 pp 20 21)
o Dr Noren also provxded oplmons fotlowrng a medlcal records rev1ew of all of Dr'

Lubenow s notes dated October 14 2010 through August 4, 2016 both FCEs dated August 1,
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2012 and August 17, 2013 and the IME report of Dr. Azexander Obolsky, dated June 7, 2013.
(Rx. 9 pp 21-22) Dr. Noren disagreed with Dr. Lubenow’s dlagnoses of either atypxcal CRPS or
neuropathlc pam cond1t1on w1th an S1 radnculopathy When Dr. Noren saw her on July 7, 2011,
he found that she had no exam ﬁndmgs of an S1 radlculopathy. (Rx. 9, pp. 22-23)_

| bz‘. Noren also addressed Dr. Lubenow’s diagnc.sis of “atypical CRPS”, which Dr. Noren
believed is just an opinion based on Dr. Lubenow’s own choice to use this: term. However, there
is no such clinically acceptaBle diagnosis as atypical complex regiona_l pain syndrome and that
the psin fnanageme'nt community in its text books, its joumsis, aﬁd its clinical practice does not,
in any place, recognize a diagnosis of atypical CRPS. (R;;'. 9,p. 24y

As to whether the intrathecal pump therapy is curreritly necessary and causally related to -

her March 23, 2009 acciden{, Dr. Noren believed that it was not. She ha& mdergone a surgical
procedure for no specific diagnosis, an interventional invasive treatment into her spinal canel for
no specific pathology. He did not believe the records showed that it resulted in any functional
1mprovement (Rx 9, p 25} It also made no anatomlc or physmioéc sense that a doctor would
conduct a surgery, thh an incision and dlssectmn down to the hgaments along her spme in the
same region as her neuropathlc pam It is contramdmated due to her descrxptxon of aliodyma over
her entire back So, perforrmng surgery m the same regmn as the complamed pam would be
contramdlcated because 1t would hkely exacerbate or worsen the syndrorne .H_owever, that
would be for someone who actually has CRPS (Rx 9 pp 25 26)
| Currentiy, hc found Ms J acobs to be at max1mum medlcal 1mprovement He based that :
oﬁmion on havmg multxple med1cat10ns some of whlch she has responded fo. She had a spmai
cord stlmulataon tnal and she has had an unnecesssry mtrathecal pump, which has not Improved

her condmon (Rx 9, p. 28) Petltloner also was hkely ﬁmcticmng at a hght physwal demand'
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.levei foliowmg the August 2012 ﬁmchonal céa{;icrty" evalaatton, and Dr Noren dtd not .see. _. '
anytlnng in the records to suggest she was capable of a hlgher level of functron (Rx 9, P 30) o
Based on the FCEs, 1t was Dr Noren s oprmou that she Was able to remrn to work asa Teacher _
at ECHO Jornt Agreement (Rx 9 p 33)

B On eross examrnatron, Dr Noren testrﬁed.that he.has conducted 20 50 exammatrons for :
MES Solutrons for whom he conducted an exammatlon m tlus case. (Rx 9 p- 40) He testlﬁed
that he no 1onger has the records he revrewed before he exammed Petrtroner on July 7 2011 |
(Rx 9, p 41) He testrﬁed that he perforrns about 2 1egal-medlcal exams per week and almost all _
of them are done on behalf of the employer (Rx 9 pp 43 44) He charges $1 500 00 per
exarmnatron (Rx 9, P 44) Dr Noren testzﬁed that he last pubhshed in 1994 nonc of hrs 3
. pubhcatrons dea} drrectly wrth the treatment of CRPS/RSD (Rx 9 p 47) CRPS isa dtagnosrs of
5 exclusmn (Rx 9 p 49) Dr Noren drd not agree that an oprmon from someone who is qualrﬁed
to make a CRPS dragnosrs holds more value and more werght 1f that person has a long-term
relatronshrp, ie., spends more time wrth the patrent over a longer penod of time. Rather he _
would say that on that specrﬁc vrsrt the patrent rmght have met the cnterra (Rx 9 p 50) Dr
Noren testrﬁed that the Budapest cnterra is the best crrterra we have at the current tnne for an
_undragnosable non~specrﬁe dxsease (Rx 9 P 51) Dr Noren then 1dent1ﬁed some of the
symptoms and srgns of CRPS (Rx 9 pp 51 52) Addrtronal records would help hrm m.
'determmmg 1f ona specrﬁc date she had ﬁndmgs that met the Budapest crtterra (Rx 9 pp 57-
| :58) Upon exammatron, Dr Noren found severe allodyma m her thoracrc and lumbar regron to

.. the sli ght toueh Petrtroner would report eAtreme pam and wathdraw when the doctor touched her
'-lower lumbar drea.’ She also reacted wrth a shght prlomotor change ie., goosebumps, wrth hght _

o -touchmg to her back Thrs is consxdered a poss1ble 1ndrcator of CRPS (Rx 9 pp 60—61) Dr
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Noren tested, by touch, her upper extremities and her lower extremmes for any temperature
drfferenual but he found none. (Rx. 9, p. 61) He test1ﬁed that he d1d not recall that Dr Lubenow
docume_nted changes in temp_erature. (Rx. 9, p- 62) Dr. Nore'n testlﬁed'tha_t he wrote: “Catherine
Jacobs pr.ovide's a'hist'ory end sﬁbjective exam ﬁndings coneietent wirﬁ rleurei)athic pain,” that
“this is an extremely unusual presentation for a complex regional .p;'ain. syndrome,” and that “this
appears to be causally related to her injury of March 23 0£2009.” (Rx. 9, pp. 63-64) Dr. Noren
testiﬁed that he reviewed records that indicated or conﬁrrried- that Peti_tioner consistently
complained of chronic pain since March 23 of 2009 end that he wrote that Catherine Jacobs has
an atypi:c‘al presentation of the syndrome, i.e., CRPS. (Rx. 9,'p.p'. 64-65) He referred Petitioner to
a rheumatologist arrd as.su'n.ied the rheﬁmatologist’s findings were xreg.'e.ti've._ (Rx. 9, p. 65) Dr.
Noren has impiented 20-30 intrathecal pumps over the coer'se of his career. (Rx. 9, p. 67)
Respondent did not contact Dr. Noren after they received the results of the utilization review; he
had no discussion with them between 2011 and 2017. He also mentioned he wanted an FCE.
(Rx. 9, p. 68) At that tlme, Dr Noren was prev1ded with a gob descrrptron but he was never
mformed that Petitioner’ s _}Ob dutres 1ncluded the physrcal restraint. of dlsabled children and
young adults (Rx 9 p. 70) Dr. Noren found no ev1denee of Si radrculopathy durmg his oniy
.exammation of her on July 7, 2011 and he was never sent the results of an EMG study (Rx 9,
pp- 72 73) If posrtwe EMG results were sent to hxm they would not have been sxgmﬁcant
| because t‘ney did not match hlS exam fmdmgs (Rx 9 p: 74) A dragnosus of CRPS 1s a weli-.
_.recogmzed non-ﬁet1t1ous med:cal dlagnosrs and is. a clmzcel dlagnos1s Dr Noren found :
'Petltroner to be at MMI and beheved her work restnctlons to be consrstent w1th the 2 prlor FCES
.(Rx 9; pp 75 76) Dr. Noren agreed that he is not a psychologlst and that there is no fmdmg m-

' any record that Petitroner is mahngenng (Rx 9 Pp- 78 81) In Dr Noren s expenence rnany-'-



. 2) He felt
that Petrtloner can work hght-duty werk for a normal Iworkday Such lrght dutres would not
mclude physmally restrammg the students Dr Noren did not know 1f Pentioner has any
documented dnvmg restrretrons (Rx 9 pp- 82 84)

On redrrect exammatron Dr Noren tesnﬁed as part of his retentron pohcy, he holds onto
physrcal records for less than a year (Rx 9 PP 86- 87) Dr. Noren testrﬁed that hrs pnvate
praetlce is orthopedle~re1ated w1th a lot of people havrng spmal issues. Probably 3% to 5% of
hls current patients have a d1agnosrs of CRPS (R.x 9 P 87) Early in hJS practrce, through 2011 |
he personally performed msertmn of mtrathecal pumps and he strll manages lns patlents with
purnps and has replaced pumps in patrents who have pumps unplanted in them. (Rx 9 p 88)
- For at least 15 years, he was puttmg pumps 1nto hrs patrents (Rx 9 p 88) He also testlﬁed that
hrs exammatron of Petltloner was consrstent wrth Dr Lubenow s exam. of Petmoner Other than
©in hrs revrew of the medlcal records Dr. Noren has not seen documented physreal ﬁndlngs that
would meet the errtena for CRPS Dr Noren revrewed 6 years of Dr. Luhenow s records from
201 0-2016 (Rx 9 p. 89) Dr Noren testlﬁed that it was unusual for Petltloner to have had
acupuncture and to have undergone an EMG since thrs is a woman who complams of severe
allodyma, who states that 1t is extremely pamful for wrnd to blow on her back Most people wrth
CR}’S cannot tolerate needles bemg stuck in them (Rx 9 pp 89 90) Dr Noren testrﬁed that_ |
: when he saw Petrtloner he d1d not spemﬁcally dlag,nose Petltroner wrth CRPS and that when he
_ ‘_1 .wrote “thrs isan extremely unusual presentatron for complex reglonal pain syndrome » he would
'have been commentmg on What Dr Lubenow had opmed (Rx 9 pp 89~90) Dr Noren testlﬁed: |
that there 1s not a body of rnedrcal hterature that dlscusses atyprcal complex regxonal parn

'syndrome (Rx 9 p 92)
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On recross examination, Dr. Noren testified that one either meets the criteria for the

diagnosis of CRPS, or one does not. (Rx. 9, p. 93).

Deposition Testimony of Howard S. Konowitz, MLD. .

Dr. Konowitz, one of Respondent’s Section 12 physicians, is board-certified in
anesthesiology and pain management. (Rx. 8, p. 5, Rx. 8, Dep. Ex. 1) Between 2010 and 2015,
Dr. Konowitz served as the clinical Assistant Professor for the i.)epartment.of Anesthesiology at
Loyola University Medical Center. (Rx. 8, p. 6, Dep. Ex. 1) Dr. KonoWitz has maintained his
own practice in Glenview, Illinois since 2001, (Rx. 8,p.7)

Dr. Konowitz examined the Petitioner on three different oec_asions, producing a total of
eight IME. reports or addendum reports. (Rx. 8, p. 10) His first appointrnenf with Petitioner on
May 23, 2012. His examination included having the PetitionerA fill out a 6-page pain
questionnaire as well as three Scantron questionnaires. These questionnaires provide a screening
test among other screening tools, in order to deterrnme treatment and proper medication
.prescrzpuons (Rx 8 p. 12}

Dr. Konow1tz reported P.etitioner’s active' medications inclﬁding G.abapent.in, Cymbaita,
TylenoI Levothyroxme, Colace, Fleet enema, Amltiza FIovent and multhtamms (Rx 8, p.
13) Dr Kon0w1tz also performed a physwai exammatxon of her When assessmg for complex

' reglenai pam syndrome, there was' hyperalgesm (an mcrease m pam to a noxmus stlmuh)

I—Iowever she had no coior changes 1no. temperature changes no edema no trophxc or naxl .

changes (Rx 8 p: 15) ’I‘hese are all 51gns and symptoms in fhe Budapest cnterla for compiex
regxonal pam syndrome (“CRPS”) In her case, one cntenon, hyperalgesm, was not sufﬁment to

meet the Budpest criteria, whlch requxres meetmg 3 out of 4 symptoms
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The Budapest cnterla wh1ch were pu’ohshed around 2006 were. developed by 30
physrcians The condltlon has had rnany names over the years Complex reglonal pam
syndrome used to be reﬂex sympathetrc dystrophy, wh1ch used to be causalgra .There 1s
renammg of the condrtron wh1ch goes back to the 18005 There were also earher cntena for thrs
drsease whlch is called a syndrome because there is 10 specrﬁc blood test such as w1th dlabetes
or hypertensron, 1n which blood can be drawn to prove the condrtron Wrth complex reglonal ,
.pam syndrome, you ‘must meet the Budapest cntena because there is no spec1ﬁc test that _
conﬁrms the dragnosrs (Rx 8 & 17) | | |

The Budapest crxtena mclude the followmg four syrnptom eategorres 4] reports of
hyperal gesza or allodyma (2) reports of vasomotor changes, ie., temperature asymmetry or skm.
_. color, 3) reports of sudomotor changes ie., sweatmg changes or edema on exam, and ﬁnally (4)
..':reports of motor/trophrc changes 1, e any loss of harr, mereased harr changes in the narls and
| see changes to the skm along w1th specrﬁc temperature changes m areas (Rx 8 P 18 Rx 8
Dep Ex 12 “Complex Reglonal Pam Syndrome Treatrnent Gu;delmes June 2006 pubhshed
by Reﬂex Sympathetlc Dystrophy Syndrome Assocratron contarrung the “Revased CRPS cntena
proposed by the Budapest Consensus Group”) Here, in . Petrtroner s 51tuatlon Dr Konow1tz
testxﬁed he only found 1 of the Budapest cntena, that bemg the subjectlve complamts of
. mechamcal allodyma However in order to render a dragnosrs of CRPS one needs to have at
.least 1 symptom in 3 of the 4 categones and at least 1 srgn in 2 or more of the categones (Rx 8 .
"Dep Ex 12 Rx 8 p 20) The srgn categones are the same as the symptom categorres except - |
: -.there must be conﬁrrnatron via- ob]ectwe test at the tnne of evaluatlon (Rx 8 Dep Ex 12)
. _:Addrtronally, the cntena are. based on what is exammed on the patlent on the day they had the.

cornplarnts and syrnptoms So erther the patlent has full Budapest srgns or symptoms on that
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day, or not. It cannot be a ptecemeal diagnosis with srgns from one day to the next. (Rx. 8, p.
21) Dr. Konowitz formed an opinion that Ms. J acobs suffered from subjectwe pain complaints,
but beyond that, she did not meet the criteria of compiex regronai pam syndrome He therefore
requested addltronal records including an independent psychiatric exam and an FCE. (Rx 8, p.
22)

Unlike Dr. Lubenow, who had diagnosed Ms. Jacobs with “atypical CRPS”, Dr.
Konowitz testified that there is no such diagnosis of “atypical CRPS”. Either you meet the
criteria and have CRPS, which is the Budapest consensus, or not. There are no criteria saying
that you have a diagnosis of atypical CRPS. (Rx. 8, p. 24)

Dr. Konowitz testified that after reviewing Dr. Obolsky’s report, he leamned that there
were psychiatric and secondary pain factors that could affect the severity and main physical
exam symptoms and her pain complaints so that her subjective pain complaints could not be used
to validate any underlying pain severity. (Rx. 8, p. 31) On August 20, 2013, Dr. Konowitz also
reviewed the Petitioner’s job description and believed that she c'ould perforrn- all parts of the job
descnptron except for contact with physzcai restramt of students (Rx g, p 32)

Regardmg her mtrathecal pam pump, by January 17, 2014 Dr Konowrtz opmed that
weamng and discontmumg the pam pump would be recommended because you need to have a
physzcai dragnosm and have met: the psychoiogrcal cntena to- clear someone to have an
mtrathecal pump In netther case was thrs met (Rx 8 p 33) Here, the Petrtroner drd not have a

. dragnoans Weamng her off the pump norma!iy takes over 6 months (Rx 8 p 34) The only 2 :
rnedrcations necessary for her treatment as of January 17 2014, were Gabapentm and Cymbalta :

and those were the oniy two medrc:atrons related to thrs accrdent (Rx 8 p 37) Addrtronally, at
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.that pomt her actrvrty restnctrons were hght—duty, whrch was based on the U S Department of
La‘oor crlterta that one can hft up to 20 1bs (Rx 8 P 37)

| On October 10, 2014 Dr K.onowﬂz conducted another physrcal exammatron of |
Petltroner Regardmg CRPS the only Budapest ﬁndmg was hyperalges1a present in the
extrermtres He was not ailowed to touch the upper part of her back as she would not let him
examme her w1th the pm pnck (Rx 8 p- 39) He d1d not see cnterta such as’ edema sweatmg, .
na11 changes, hair growth changes or temperature changes Whlch are thrngs requrred by the _.
Budapest cnterra (Rx 8 p- 40) Based on hxs physrcal exammatron and the Budapest cntena
there was no dlagnosrs of CRPS (Rx 8 pp 40- 41) Accordzng to Dr Konow1tz the treatment.
protocoi provrded at Rush«Presbytenan-St Luke s through Dr Lu‘oenow 13 a very dlfferent_
i protocol than the rest of the world (Rx 8 p- 43) The i 1ssue here gets down to a dtagnosxs Dr
Lubenow has a CRPS treatment plan w1thout a CRPS dragnosxs (Rx 8 p. 44) Dr Konowrtz
.- testlﬁed that he trarned wrth Dr. Lubenow years ago (Rx 8, p 45) Durmg hls exazmnatron of
the Petltloner Dr Konomtz noted that there were no objectxve ﬁndmgs and SO she d1d not meet
the cntena for CRPS (Rx 8 p 46) Current rnedrcatlons for her 1ncluded Clomdrne Dﬂaudld
whrch 1s specxﬁcally in the purnp, and the pump cannot be stopped She also took Wellbutnn
Celebrex, Gabapentm Cymbalta Whlch are all psyehologrcal medlcatlons and for the : nerves so
that is reasonable treatment for her (Rx 8 P 47) |

On March 26 2015 Dr Konow1tz conducted another physrcal exammatron of Petrtroner -

' (Rx 8, Dep Ex 7) Dunng his physmal exammatzon of Petrtroner on March 26 2015 from the
: .CRPS standpomt, there was no temperature asyrmnetry, no edema, and no color changes found
all of whlch are cntena for the Budapest consensus group to make the dmgnoms of complex

.regmnal .pam -syn‘drome (Rx 8 p 50) Dr Konow;tz also rev1ewed the Mananjoy dnv1ng"
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evaiuation, dated May 14, 2013. (MES/Marianjoy may hai/e' provided the report- witha typo date

of May 14, 2015, when in fact the report should be dated May 14, 2013 ) (Rx 8, p 54) He came
to the opmlon that based upon the Mamanjoy report a dlscusszon w1th the patlent and her
exammati_on, that she could drive for 20 - 30 minutes at a tlme, get oet of _the_ car and stretch, and
go back for another 20 — 30 minutes of driving. (Rx. &, p. 52) Accoidihg to Dr. Konowitz, the
driving restrictions would only include being able to stretch ets/ery 20 — 30 minutes, and that she
may have permanent adaptive controis available if needed. (Rx. '8, p.58) ..

In his.ﬁnal report of Novefnber 5,2015, hie diagnosis was “r’ne'chaxﬁCal allodynia”. With
the Petitioner, there is no other diagnosis that jus.tiﬁes. her subjective corhplairits. It wasn’t that
there were other diagnoses that fit her, tle just had her at aliodyﬁia. AIl.od._y.ni.a is defined as a
subjective e:tperience to :a non—ptainfui experience. For example, tarlten-puttMg on’ clothing
causes pain or, in her case, when rolling a pin wheel on her feels like a knife cutting her skin,
those signs don’t fit or justify a diagnosis. (Rx. 8, p. 59) Dr. Konowitz, while reading his answer
to queétioﬁ 1 in his -November 5,2015 addendum report, noted tﬁat “mechana'cai allodynia can
be caused by 1ntrathecal opoxds, whlch have been medlcaily prescnbed for her paln state Tius is
Opotdqnduced hyperalge31a wl'nch has becn reported w1th chromc mtrathecai use of opmds, but
to date frequency is mterxmttent Altematweiy, there is no dlagnosm that _]ustlﬁes the subjectlve
| compiamts ”? (Rx 8 Dep Ex 10, p 1) Hcre there was no reason to mstali an mtratheeal pump
as it is: not placed for sub;ectivc complamts A d1agnoszs of mechamcal allodyma is not a
: _sufﬁclcnt dlagnosm for a pam pump Instead you need to have exther a malxg;nant pam state or a
non—mahgnant pam state In the non~mahgnant pam state group, you must have a deﬁmnve
.dlagnosxs In her group, there is no deﬁmtlve dlagnoms Hcre, we have sub}ectwe pam

| complamts thch do not correlate w1th all the 11sts gwen before about 1ntrathecai pa:m pumps
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' such as needlng 1t for CRPS mechamcal back pam or post—lammectomy pam syndrome, for

exarnple (Rx 8 p 64) Here, Dr. Konow1tz recommends that Ms J acobs can perform sedentary- |
duty work that 1ncludes sﬂtmg, standmg, and walklng for an S-hour penod
Regardlng her psychlatnc exarmnanon w1th Dr Obolsky on June 7 2013 Dr Konow1tz .
conﬁrmed that the Petltloner exhlbtted psychlatne and secondary gam factors affectmg the !
seventy and mamtenance of her physmai symptoms and pam She presented w1t11 rnulttple _ |
psychlatnc factors such as dependent personahty traits and somatic reacnons under stress
Somatlc reactmty under stress resuIts in functtonal tmpatrrnent and dxsabdlty in this pattent this
would account for ali her pam ona dally ba31s in additlon to her poten‘aal hyperalgesm (Rx 8,
. 67) o
- On cross-esannnatlon Dt' Konow1tz testlﬁed that MES Solunons hn'ed hnn to exaznme
Pet1t1oner and to wnte the reports and addendums He charged $1 500 00~$2 000 00 per.
r'-.'exammatlon and $1 250 00/hour for hxs deposmon testnnony I—Ie further testlﬁed that he
conducts approxunately 2 IMEs per week MES Solut1ons prowded all the medlcal records for
h15 rev1ew Wlth regard to hls curnculum v1tae Dr. Kon0w1tz testtﬁed that the last tnne he
pubhshed was’ 1n 1999 wlnch was dunng hlS res1dency Each tlme he met w1th Ms J acobs, he
'-_remembers spendmg 1‘/2 hours w1th her So, in her case he spent approxtmately 4‘/2 hom‘s total
| du:nng hlS 3 exams of her (Rx 8 pp 69—75) They dtscussed the EMG report and the Mananjoy
| .report that mciudes the dnvmg exam (Rx 8 p 76) Dr Konow1tz found the results of ._
' Petmoner s Cage Questtonnalre whtch assesses the nsk of long-term OpIOId use, to be negatlve -
' -(Rx 8 pp 78-79) He also noted that Petlnoner d1d not report pre—ex1st1ng complamts of pam that |
'-were smular to those she expenenced followmg the 1nc1dent (Rx 8 p 84) Dr Konownz also' :

_ .testlﬁed that he truly beheves that Penttoner feeis the pain she descnbed to tnm In returnmg her |
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to sedentary duty work, Dr. Konowdz testlﬁed he was gwmg her the Iowest poss1bie duty from
her subjectlve complamts He did not see that she was gomg to be any Iess than sedentary duty,
but she could be greater than sedentary duty (Rx 8, p 86) Dr Konow1tz testlﬁed that he does
not know the workmgs of Dr. Obolsky $ ofﬁce and does not know_ whether he followed the
appropriate protocol. (Rx. 8, p. 89) When he referred to secondat'y gdin, thatlldid not equate to
intentional fraud. (Rx. 8, pp. 92-93) Dr. Konowitz testified that he"do.es not agree with the
placement of the pump because of the risks involved and beeduse one must heve a diagnosis that
meets the oriteria. Dr. Lubenow does not have that diagnosis. (Rx. 8, pp. 103-104) Dr. Konowitz
| testitied that he boosted Petitioner ﬁ"om.sedentary duty to light duty based on what she told him
“she coujd do at work wtth her own physical state. He beliet/es_thet an FCElS juét a jumping-off
poidt for him. (Rx. 8, pp. 108, 147) Dr. Konowitz egreed that PetitiIOhe'r .d.id not sustain
subsequent trauma following the accident. (Rx. 8, p. 108) Dr. Konowitz further testified that she
told him she was able to drive an hour and that she would get in and out of the car. (Rx. 8, pp.
121- 122) He suggested additional dnvmg sessions w1th and w1thout adeptwe equipment (Rx 8,
p. 123) Dr. Konothz opmed that Petltloner s hyperalgesm, or. alIodyma m1ght be oplold~
| mduced asa result of chrome :ntratheeal use of oplolds (Rx 8, pp 125 126) One way to test for
this is to lessen the amount of the 0plOld in the mtrathecal pump (Rx 8 p. 127) Dr Konownz
contmues to recommend that Petxtloner be weaned frorn use of the mtrathecal pump (Rx 8 P

134) Even 1f Petttloner expenences subjective pam that hrmts her to drlvmg no more than 20-30_

: mmutes, Dr Konow:tz dtd not feeI that a 30~mmute hm;t of dnvmg would ’oe appropnate (Rx —

8 pp 136 137) Dr Konow1tz testlﬁed that Petxtloner could perform sedentary«duty Work for 8
hours a day, based on lus exammaﬁons of her and the records and dlagnostlc test results he had |

been glven He felt she was at MMI (Rx 8, p E37} Dr Konowdz s ﬁnal oplmon was that
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Pettttoner s current condttlon. cons1sts of subj ective symptoms wrthout physmloglcal abnormahty
and that she eXhlbltS psycluatnc and secondary gam factors that affect the seventy and
mamtenance of her physrcal symptoms and paln cornplamts (Rx 8 pp 137 138) He testtﬁed
“AH patlents subjecttve patn I w111 beheve is true” -and “Patn is always what one expenences
Dr. Konothz agrees that there is no ev1dence of any psychologteal 1ssues before the acotdent |
(Rx 8 pp 138 139) Dr Konowrtz opmed that there was an underlymg event but no specrﬁc _
patn dtagnosxs smce she does not meet the cntena He equates ob_;ecttve ﬁndlngs w1th sxgns
symptoms physxcal exam ﬁndmgs (Rx 8 PD- 139 140) |
On redn'ect exammatlon Dr Konowrtz testtﬁed that durmg each of the 4 physmal
exammattons that he conducted of her he found that she never met the Budapest crttena for
: cornplex regtonal patn syndrome (Rx 8 p. 141) He testtﬁed in answer 10 questton 4 in the
k August 20 2013 report that only the psychtatnc exam to date has been reasonable and '
necessary (Rx 8 PP 142 143) Dr. Konowitz deﬁned secondary gatn factors asa whole list of
events that beneﬁts you ftom havmg a paln disorder mcludmg monetary rewards (Rx 8 pp
144- 145) He beheved that Dr. Lubenow was v1olat1ng a standard of care 'oy mstalhng the
mtrathecal pump because he did not have a vahd pam dxagnosrs (Rx 8, p 145) Dr Konowrtz
testrﬁed that in answenng questton 9 in the October 10 2014 report he is sxmply statmg the
medtcattons she was on at that ttme but is not recommendmg such medlcattons (Rx 8 p 150)
Petittoner dld not tell htm that she needed to stretch ever 20-3(} mtnutes when she drlves (Rx 8
pp 152 153) He testtﬁed that 1. 3 1 5 mg of hydromorphone in a pam pump is cons1dered a
E dosage that could lead to optold-mduced hyperalge31a (Rx 8 . 153)
| On recross examlnatton Dr Konowrtz agreed that in one ‘of hrs answers he hsted a.

continuatton of the pam pump medtcatlons, and that part of the explanatton was that one cannot
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discontinue these 2 medications without weaning her from the pump. Then Counsel asked him if,
later on, he authored an report in which he leaves off the intrathecal pump_med_iealions when
answering the same question._ Dr. .Kollow.itz responded th_at it depends.en hovlz tﬁejr asked the
question. If the doctor stated.they should discontinue the pump and e)ean l_t, then the medications
come off. Dr. Konowitz testified that in the report he stated she is to wean off the pump and

discontinue it and so, he took the medications off the list. (Rx. 8, pp. 156-158)

Section 12 Report of Mary L. Moran, M.D.

Dr. Mary L. Mosan is a licensed medical doctor, who is board-certified in internal
medicir_xe'.and. rheumatology. (Rx. 4) Betweeh 1991 - 1996, slle was an Assi'stant Professor of
Mediclne at the University of Chieago. (Rx. 4) Ffom 1999 to the present, she has been in private
practice at the Center for Arthritis and Osteoporosis, Illinois Bone & Joint Institute. (Rx. 4) On
January 4, 2012, for one hour, twenty minutes, she examined Petitioner and later prepared a
report of her ﬁndmgs and Opzmons (Rx 5)

Dr Moran s phys1cal examination of Petitioner on J anuary 4, 2012 revealed that she was
alert, onented anci afebnle She is szttmg comfortably in the c‘nalr Her we:ght is 138 lbs. Her
Skln appears entirely clear Her neck shows full and normal range of motxon wnthout provocation
of pam _There IS no adenopathy or thyromegaly Her extremltxes were normal m appearance

| There was no swellmg, warmth or erythema The Jomt exammatlon showed a full Tange of

: 'motmn of the shoulders elbows, v_msts metacarpophalangeal and prox1ma1 mterphalangeali o

- Jomts knees lnps and ankles There is nc ev1dence of swelhng, warrnth erythema or
reproducxble tenderness W1th dzrect palpatlon of any of her jOlntS The pdtient had very weli~

developed musculature in the upper and Iewer extremltles both proxlmally and dzstally There
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was no evrdence of atrophy Deep tendon reﬂexes were 2+ and symmetnc m both the upper and
lower extremrttes Motor exarmnatron demonstrated 5/5 strength in the upper and lower
extrermtlcs both proxnnai and drstal Petrtroner would not allow her to dtrectly palpate her back.
When touchmg her around the shoulders postenorly and along the trochantenc regtons, she
cornplamed and wrnced wrth pam (Rx 5) | |

Dr Moran provrded the followmg oprmons | ‘it is her assessment that an 1ntratheca1 pump
for rnedlcatron is not mchcated though she does not have ﬁrst—hand expenence wrth the such
pumps She notes Petltloner has subjectrve complamts of pam but there are no objectrve
ﬁndmgs to substantlate mechamcai pam or 1njury (Rx 5)

Wrth regard to a scooter that had been recornmended Dr Moran drd not beheve that
: Petrtloner needs a scooter as she is able to arnbulate (Rx 5 p 1) Dr. Moran thought 1t was
unusual that the patlent was able to sit comfortabty ina charr 1n whrch she is: clearly expenencmg _
: the pressure of the chan- drrectly on the areas in whrch she is unahle to be touched (Rx 5 p 3)

Dr Moran also gave optruons regardmg Pettttoner s treatment to date She summanzed
by statmg that extensrve medrcal rnanagernent has ‘oeen done, 1nclud1ng treatment wrth
Gabapentm Tramadol Cymbalta, and dally narcotrcs - none of whrch have really resulted in
_srgmﬁcant reductton in symptom rehet” (Rx 5 p 4) Dr Moran d1d not agree wrth Dr'
Lubenow W1th respect to the placement of an mtrathecai pump Dr Moran stated “[1]t seems
_ extremely unhkeiy that th15 pattent would respond to treatment w1th mtrathecal medrcatton,
glven that she has had httle or no response to a11 of the prevrously stated medrcatrons and the |
.'spmal cord sttmulator ” (Rx 5 p 4) Dr Moran sard 1t WaS dtfﬁcult to say What the dlagnosrs is,
only saying that the pattent subjectwely cornplarns of constant severe paln and hypersensmvrty |

m an area where there is enttreiy nonnal tlssue (Rx 5, p 4) Regardrng Petltloner s prognosrs
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although she has been given very aggressive therapies, not only in terms of medical management
wifh m.edic.aticns but also with rehabilitation, she has had little or no response. 1£ seems unlikely
that her subjective co_mp_laint_s of pain will resolve. (Rx 5, p. 4) Dr. M_orah ﬁlrrher festiﬁcd that
she does not believe that further treatnaent is needed \rrith respect to the original injury. She has
had all reasonable treatments. Unless there was clearly a signiﬁcant subjective finding on nerve
testing or diagnostic imaging pointing to a particular source of her pain, she does not feel that
any additional treatment is recommended. Finally, Dr. Moran stated that she believes that the
patient could return to work in a sedentary job, which would be a sitting job. Dr. Moran believed

she has lived with this without signs of detectable debilitation. (Rx. 5, p. 5)

Section 12 Report of Jonathan S. Citow, M.D.

Dr. Citow conducted an examination of Petitioner and later wrote a Section 12 report
with his findings and opinions. (Rx. 2) Dr. Citow is a board-certified neurosurgeon. (Rx. 1)
HIS practlce is currently at the Amencan Center for Spine & Neurosurgery in leertyvﬂle,
Iilmms (Rx 1) Dr. Cltow performed a physmal examrnatlon of Petmoner on November 4, 2009
(Rx 2) HIS physmai exammation of Petitioner revealed that her back was non-tender w1th fu11
range of motlon though there was a drffuse achmess around her buttock Rangc of motion was
mtact Stralght leg raismg was negatrve bxlateraily Motor strength was 5/5 and sensatlon was
grossiy mtact (Rx. 2, p. 2) Dr Crtow also rev1ewed mechcal records that mcluded MRIS of the
-thoraclc and lumbar spme from June 11, 2009 w}uch were essentlaliy normal Dr: Catow LN
dlagnosrs of Petrtroner s condmon was ncn anatomic dysthesrsas not l1ke1y related to the mjury

(Rx 2, P 2) He found her prognos1s to be excelient that she had rcached MMi and that she
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should be able to .return to work full duty w1thout restncnons (Rx 2 p. 2) Dr CItOW also '. 'Z.

authored an addendum (Rx 2, pp 4- 5)

' “I d pendent Forensrc Psychratrlc Exammatron” b

Aiexander E. Obolsk '_ MLD.

Dr Obolsky isa board—certiﬁed forensu: psychxatnst llcensed to practrce rt1edlcme .m
Illmors and board certtﬁed in psychlatry and neurology from 1994 - the present (Rx 6) From
1999 to the present he has been the medrcal drrector of Health & Law Resource, Inc a corporate '
.and legal psyclnatnc consultatmns.and evaluattons facrhty Over the years he has also been the
drrector of several 1n-pat1ent cltmcs and between 1995 - 1998 was the Dlrector of the Dwrsron '
'of Forensrc Psychratry at the Department of Psychratry and Behavroral Sc;ences, Northwestem
-Unrversaty Medlcal School From 2003 to the present he has been the A351stant Professor of
s Chmcal Psych1atry and Behavxoral Scrences at Northwestern Umversrty Medrcal School (Rx 6)

Dr Obolsky performed a 4- day evaluatton of Petmoner for her forensw psychlatnc
evaluatlon (Rx 7,p- 3) Ms J acobs also exhlbrted phys1cal drscomfort and paln behavrors that
worsened wrth the length of tlme she spent in the evaluatlon (Id) Dr Obolsky opmed that
Petltroner presents w1th rnultrple psychlatnc factors reasonably expected to rnﬂuence negatwely
her response to the contmued prospecttve medrcal care It was also hls oprmon wrth a
reasonable degree of medtcal psychratnc certatnty, that Petttloner dld not develop any condttron'

_'.of rnental 1ll-bemg due to any work-related events (Rx 7 p 1 of 6) ln her wntten tests, Dr

Obelsky noted that there were senous 1ncon51stencres among vanous sources of data relatmg to oo

: 'the potentlal presence of anx1ety and depresswe symptorns Her mconsrstent performance on
'-vahdu:y 1ndrcators undermme the rehabrlrty of her self-reported symptoms of anxxety and

-depresswe symptoms (Rx 7 p 3 of 6) Dr Obolsky also noted that Petltroner scored wrthm
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failing range on the Green Word Memory Test (“GWMT”) and on the Structured Inventory of
.Mahngered Symptomology (“SIMS”) Her performance on these two tests were consistent with
syrnptom amphﬁcatlon Pehtroner S sconng patterns on measures of attentron and executrve
functlon (Dlgrt Forward Trails A&B, Wrsconsm Cart Sort (WCST )) were: below expectation
based on her educatlonai attamment Her pain complalnts do not exphcate her performance on
these tests. These tests were consistent with symptom exaggeratron. (Rx. 7, p. 4 of 6) It was Dr.
Obolsky’s opinion that she exhib_its psychiatric and secondary gain t‘actors that affect the severity
and rnainten'ance of her physical symptoms and pain complaints. (Rx 7; p 5 of 6) When asked
whether the pain pump or medicine delivered by the.pur'np is necessary, Dr Obolsky believed
that the subjectrve parn and physical comptamts wrthout 1dent1ﬁed pathology, are an unreliable
foundation for invasive procedures unless exphcrtly performed to change Petitioner’s verbal

behaviors, i.¢., to cause a decrease a in her complaints of pain. (Rx. 7, p. 5 of 6)

Dy 'pOSition.Testi'monv offA'ssistant DirectOr of Resp’ . ent. BOImie Lee JOrdan

Bonme Lee Jordan testrﬁed that she was emp}oyed by Respondent ﬁ'orn July i, 2015 to
June 30 2017 ECHO J oant Agreement stands for Exceptional Chﬁdren Have Opportumty and it
is a specral educatlon cooperatrve that servrces school dlstncts in southem Cook County Bonnie
Jordan served as the Assrstant Dlrector for Cumculum and Instructron (Rx 12 pp 4~5) Ms
Jordan was not employed by ReSpondent durzng the 2009 work accrdents However, she was
p present when Petltroner returned to work in: 2()16 (Id p 6) Between January 11 2016 and
Apnl 12 2016 she was. workrng as Assxstant Drrector of ECHO (Id) She accornmodated
Petrtroner S work restnctlons in brmgmg her back to work Her accommodatrons in. January-

2016 mcluded returmng to work for 8 hours w1th mtermtttent standmg and srttmg She also
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.ordered Wayne Dendler and J erlmfer Evanettl to rev1ew w1th Petmoner any accommodatlon she B
may need to do her duttes Ms Iordan had been workmg thh ali of her ?nnc1pals to have thls N
happen, S0 she gave some suggesnons for what things could be used such as a scooter for.
bmldmg travel and also a cane for the classroom and for sbort dlstances seat cushmns no heavy _
| .hﬁmg and no physmal management (Id pp 7 8)
Petitloner was glven the JOb ofa Paraprofesswnal and was asslgned to the room of the |
Art Teacher, Mr Cannon (Id p 9) Petl’aoner d1d not object to trylng tbe restnctlons and _ ..
'accommodatlons in her return to work (Id p lO) Whlle Petmoner went back to work in
' J anuary 2016 1t was Ms I ordan s recollecnon that Prxncupal Wayne Dendler was saymg that she
was havmg a hard tlme (Id) Her start date of }anuary 11 2016 was conﬁrmed and she would
- start asa Step 5 hne 4, pursuant to the colleetwe bargazmng contract (Id p ll)

o However they recelved a letter dated February 12 2016 from Dr Lubenow to
Petmoner s attomey, Dav1d Kosm saylng that Dr Lubenow found her to be totally and
permancntly dxsabled and recommends that she lmnt her drmng restnctlons to 20 rmnutes at a
t1me (Rx 12 Dep Ex 3) Bonme }ordan testlﬁed that based on Dr Lubenow § report she sent _
a letter to ‘Ms. Jacobs on Apnl 4 2016 in wlnch she recommended tenmnatlon of her |
employment due to her 1nab111ty to return to work {Rx 12 p 12 Rx 12 Dep Ex 3) That
_recommendatxon was. conﬁrmed in a vote of terrmnation of employment at ECHO’S regularly—
_scheduled board meetmg and reduced to wntmg to Petltloner (Px 32) Hez~ ofﬁc1al date of .. :-.
| :ternnnatzon was Apnl 12 2016 (Rx 12 » 13) - L '

i On cross-exaﬁnnatton, Ms J ordan tesnﬁed that she was not an employee of Respondent"
at the tlme Petltloner sustamed the accldent and was not an employee there when Petittoner ﬁrst _

: retumed to work 1n 2010 (Rx 12 pp 15 16) Regardmg Petttloner ) second return to work Ms
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Jordan agreed that she received a letter from Resnondent dated December 16 2015 that stated,
per documentatzon from York R1sk Services, Petmoner was cIeared to return to work for 8 hours
a day at sedentary dnty (Rx 12, pp. 15- 16) Sedentary duty meant she couid srt stand and walk
f‘or 8 hours. Oniy York Risk Servwes is mennoned in the 1etter not the name of the doctor who
released her. (Rx. 12, p. 17) Ms. Jordan testified that she felt that there'was an independent
examination upon which those restrictions were based. (Rx. 12, p. 17) Ms Jordan testified that
she did not know the restrictions that.Petitioner’s treating physician had irnpo_sed on her. (Rx. 12,

p. 18) Ms. Jordan agreed that there is nothing in the December 16, 2015 Ietter from Respondent
that says Pentzoner should avord restraining students. (RX. 12 P 21) Ms J ordan tesnﬁed that she
drd reeall Prxncxpal Dendler saying that he was uncomfortable wrth Petitloner returmng to the
position of Paraprofessmnai at AFL. (Rx. 12, p. 22) Ms. Jordan testlﬁe_d that Petmoner 8
attempted return to work began on January 11, 2016 and lasted about a month. (Rx. 12, p. 23)
She recalled seeing Petitioner once for 5-10 minutes during her return to work. Petitioner was in
the Art Room when Ms Jordan v1srted w1th her (Rx. 12 p. 24) Ms Jordan was aware that
durmg Petrtloner s retnrn to work in: 2016 Pentloner had cause to be off work on numerous
.occaswns to see her doctors (Rx 12 p 26) Ms J ordan testlﬁed that Petltxoner S term1nat10n was
based on her 1nab1hty to retum to work (Rx 12 p. 30)

On redlrect examrnatron she testlﬁed that Pentloner was not the first Paraprofessronal to
be glven a _]Ob accornmodatron such as no physwai management of the students (Id p 36} For
example when they drd CPI trammg, whrch is Cnme Preventxon Tralmng, _there were people-
who eoulci not parttclpate due to pregnancy, due to hﬂmg restnctlons or due to back 1ssues |
Respondent made sure that 1t was noted that they couid not partlcrpate rn the physrcal

: m“anagement_ of students-.' (Id., p.- 37)_W_h_en Ms. J_ordan_ _saw Pet__lnoner the one ttme_ during her
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, return to work in 2016 she remernbers seemg her srttlng in the back of classroom workmg on'
papers They ‘ooth sard hello Ms. Jordan sard she would also stop and talk to the klds and be |
d1srupt1ve Ms Jordan further testlﬁed that Petrnoner d1d not seem to be in any kind of drstress .
at that trme (Id . 38) . |

On £ECIOSS exarnmatron, Ms Jordan teshﬁed that the only Paraprofessmnal who was

grven the restnctrons Petlnoner was grven was Petrtroner Catherme J acobs (Rx 12 Pp- 38 39)

EVR Vocatlonal Assessment. Transferable Skﬂls Ana ysxs and Labor Market Survey.

Respondent offered into ewdence the foren31c EVR Vooatronal Assessment & _'

Transferable Skﬂls Analysrs along w1th the EVR Labor Market Survey (Rx 10 Rx 11) On

_ August 19 2014, Petrtroner met thh the vocatronal counselor for an mtervrew at Petrtioner s
= Counsel’s ofﬁce (Rx 10 p 1) The rned1cal records and reports that Kathleen M Dytrych CRC
revrewed meluded the followrng the J anuary 4, 2012 report by Dr Mary L. Moran, the J une 7,
2013 psychlatnc exarn report by Dr Alexander E. Obolsky, the August 20 2013 report by Dr.
Howard S Konowrtz the October 17,2013 FCE report the November 13 2013 work release
form by Dr Tlrnothy R. Lu‘oenow the January 17, 2014 report by Dr Howard S. Konowrtz the
' February 26, 2014 report by Dr Matthew J aycox the August 15 2014 work release by Dr. |
Matthew J aycox the October 14, 2014 report by Dr. Howard S. Konowrtz and the Martanjoy
Dnvmg Evaluation records that 1ncluded records frorn May 14 2013 and May 25 2013. (Rx 10,
pp 6- 14) Nota’oly rmssmg frorn the records rev1ewed are the results of Petltroner s August 1,
'2012 FCE whrch the evaluator found to be vahd (Px 4 Dep Ex 4 Px 4) The evaluator
hrrnted Petruoner to 4 hours of lrmrted work per day (Px 9 Ms Dytrych sought a new FCE

whrch was never authorlzed She also suggested that Peutroner undergo another dnvrng _
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assessment, which occ_:grred on June 18, 2015. (Px. 15) Given that Ms. Dytrych _created_ Rx. 10
aﬁd Rx. 11 beforé June 18; 201 5, she did not consider the results of the new driving assessmentr.
Ms. DYtrych cOnclﬁéed that.Petitionér may or majr not havg lost'acc_éss to her us_h_al and
cu'stomaxjy erﬁploym:enf as a Special Education Tea;:her, and that there w.e're {_aribus full-time or
part-time jobs available to the her, depending upon which physiciaﬁ’s opinions applied to
fetitioﬁer. (Rx. 10, p. 19) No job readiness training or job placement was authorized by

Respondent.

Ms. Dyﬁ'ych compiled a Labor Market Survey. The Labor Market Survey lists over 100
jobs, Itis divi_déd into sedentafy v, 1ight—d1ity jobs, feaéhing_&_elétéd V. bafeer alternatives and
jobs within 15 minutes of Petitioner’s residence v. those in which no driving restriction is

required. (Rk. 1L p. 1)

Missing from Ms. Dytrych’s analysis are the following final restrictions by Dr. Lubenow,

(Px. 18, p. 267), which is dated May 2, 2014:

1 * 34 hours of work per day
2) 15 rﬁiﬁﬁteé of _lOcé_l dfi\?iﬁg per day
3y Slttmg 30-45 mmutes then réét/i:oéition change
4) | Standmg 10- 15 mimites then p_(.)'siﬁon éhange
| 5) | 'M-axiu{miiﬁi_ri'gfofis_péﬁﬁ&s' | B
6 Useof scooter fot local transport

7y Use of c_:ar.le"fox; sh'ért_f walks
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: As noted above Ms Dytrych faﬂed to con51der the Vahd FCE of August 1 2012 Ms -
'Dytrych’s analysxs 1s aiso based upon Dr Konowrtz October 14 2015 return to hght-duty work
However Ms Dytrych is unaware that Dr Konowrtz agreed that Petrtxoner could return to only
- sedentary—duty work at best (Rx 7, p 137) Petrtroner notes that the Labor Market Survey was
submitted w1thout testlmony The schoot dlstncts are varymg d1stances from Petxtxoner s home
None of them document the tn'ne necessary to travel to each school glven traffic speed and
congestton None of the part—tlme posrtlons noted on the hst of school dlstncts dchneate whether _
they are part—time per week or part—tnne per day Of all the posmons hsted by Ms Dytrych only
one 1s “prlmanly sedentary‘ ’ though 1t does requzre hﬂmg The heav1est hftmg requlrement
would be a “box of records” at most (Rx 11 p 16) However that _}Ob is full— tune and 1s 19

_ rmles away Sorne of the hsted 30b opportumties fali outs1de of Petmoner s stated restrlctlons as
 indicated by Ms. Dytrych.-_(R_x_.- 11, pp. 21-24) o

| Ii. Cohclusion's'(jf Law
F. Is Petttloner s current conditlon of 1ll-be1ng causally related to the m_}ury"

The Arbxtrator ﬁnds Petmoner s current conchtlon of 111-bemg, as d1agnosed hy Dr.

Lubenow to be causaily related to her work mjury of March 23 2009

: Based on the chmcally requxred Budapest cnteraa nezther Dr Noren nor Dr Konowrtz

was abie to d1agnosrs Petmoner wath CRPS The Budapest cntena are recogmzed as the current

S standard upon whlch Petltroner s treatmg physwran Dr Lubenow, wouid render a d1agnosxs B

_(Px 24 pp 8 11) Dr. Noren an.d Dr Konowdz testrﬁed that Dr Lu‘oenow s oplmon that _'

| .Petlt!oner had atyplcal CRPS 18 not a recogmzed medlcal dragnos1s
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Dr. Noren examined Petitioner on a single occaslon ape'roximately 6-1/.2 years orior to
tnal Dr. Noren testrﬁed that when he exammed Petltloner, she exhibited severe allodyma in the
thorac1c and lumbar regton to sltght touch Upon touchmg her lower lumbar regron, he testtﬁed
he would remove his hand because she reported extreme pam Dr Noren also found that there
was a slight pilomotor change with lightly touching her back. He dtd not note' any color changes

or swelling. (Rx. 9, pp. 14-15) He stated that his diagnosis of her was indeterminate and referred

her fo a rheumatologist. (Rx. 9, p. 16)

| Dr. Noren testified that he wrote, in his iuitial repott, the following: “as noted by Dr.
Lubenow, thls is an etttrernely unusual preseottttion fo'r a cornolek re_gionel:peir_r syndrome,” and
that based on the history that she provided, “this eopears to be.causally' relttted to her injury” of
March 23,2009 (Rx 9, pp. 63*6;‘4) Dr. Noren die.gnosed. Petitiorter .es .s'uffe'ring .from atypical
CRPS. Dr. Noren later attempted to deny that he made these statements.

Dr. Noren foun_d no clinical evidence of S1 radiculopathy.

The optmons of Dr. Konow1tz are suspect smce they rest upon an 1ncomplete review of
all the relevant medtcal records Dr Konow1tz d1d not rev1ew the RIC records that document
abnormal sweat pattems Dr Lubenow documented temperature variances along thh abnormal

halr growth yet Dr Konow;tz never sclenttﬁcally tested for temperature differences.

| Durmg hlS exammattons Dr Konowrtz d1d not ﬁnd color changes, edema or temperature

asymmetry

Ne1ther Dr Noren nor Dr Konow1tz noted or explamed the posmve S1 radtculopathy

documented on, Pettttoner s EMG because they were not glven the EMG results
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: Nelther Dr Noren nor Dr Konow1tz acknowledged the objectlve ﬁndlngs of CRPS as

documented by Dr Lobenow, in the RIC records or m the treatmg records of Petrtroner 8 other X

ph_ysrcrans.

The Arbrtrator notes that Dr Lubenow testiﬁed mconsrstently about hls ﬁndmgs that met .
the Budapest cntena He testrﬁed in one part of hrs deposrtron that in the very begmnmg of her
presentatlon to h1rn she had some temperature asymmetry and an mcrease in her harr drstnbutron
in her thlghs or her legs ’I‘hese s1gns would have provrded sufﬁcrent dragnostrc crrtena to -

‘ dragnose CRPS (Px 24 p 74) Later in the deposrtron Dr Lubenow testrﬁed that at hls very
ﬁrst evaluatron of her he found that she d1d not meet the Budapest cntena, but at some later _ -
pomt he found that she drd have sufﬁcrent exam ﬁndmgs to meet the Budapest crlterla Those
cntena were seen durrng only one exam However such srgns and symptoms were not all there

~on the ﬁrst day he saw her in 2010 (Px 24 p. 100)

Notwrthstandmg thrs mconsrstency in hrs testlmony, the Arbrtrator ﬁnds Dr Lubenow .to
be the most quahﬁed to render thls dxagnosrs when con31der1ng the oprruons offered by all of the
phys1c:1ans m thlS case. Dr Lu’oenow s cumculum vrtae reveals hrs expertlse m the study and
treatrnent of CRPS Moreover Dr Lubenow has been Petrtroner s treatmg physrelan for
;approxnnately 7 years Doetors Kmncrc Lours and Gruft concur wrth Dr Lubenow s dlagnosrs | |

Even 1f one of the medrcal wrtnesses was equrvocal on the questron of causatron 1t 1s for 3
_"..the Comrmssron to decrde whrch medrcal vrew is to be accepted and 1t may attach greater werght _ |

-_to the oplmon of the treatlng physreran Internattonal Vermzcullte V. Indus Comm n, 394 N E 2d

1166 31 111 Dec 789 (1979)
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Based on the foregomg, the Arbitrator finds that he agrees thh the followmg diagnosis

of Petitloner $ condltzon of ill- bemg, which Dr. Lubenow oﬁ‘ered

Her eurreut condition of ill-being is atypicall compiex' regional pain
syndrome, or alternatively one may refer to it as a neuropathic pain
condition of the low back tumbar spine and legs bilaterally, she has a

secondary diagnosis of bilateral S-1 radiculopathy.” (Px. 24, pp. 71-72)

Dr. Lubenow testified that he believed the cause of these conditions was the

work injury that was described in March of 2009. (Px. 24, pp 24-25)

J. Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and

necessary? Has Respondent paid all appropriate charges for all reasonable and
necessary medical services? '

_ _The Arbltrator ﬁnds the medlcal servxces rendered to Petmoner from March 23 2009
through the date of the cIosmg of proofs February 22 2018 to be reasonable and necessary
’I'he Arbltrator bases tius ﬁndmg on the record_s and opmlons of Petltxouer s t_reating.physm;ans,
as well as on Petltioner s testlmony | | RN | | | |

On behalf of Respondent Dr Noren test1ﬁed that the medtcatlons prescnbed to
Petmoner such as Gabapentm, were appropnate and reasonable Dr Konow1tz testlﬁed that he
wouid have prcscnbed Gabapentm and Cymbalta but does not agree mth the placement of the .
pump : : _ : = . |

On February 24 2012 Dr Lubenow 1mp1anted a permanent 1ntratheca1 pam pump 1n.

Petatzoner (Px 24 Dep Ex 2)
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In h_lS August 2(.). .2.013 report (Rx 8 Dep Ex 4), Dr Konow1tz testtﬁed he rndlcated '
that the treatment to date has been reasonable and customary He test1ﬁed unconvmcmgly, that |
the treatment to whlch he was refemng was the mdependent psychlatrtc exam that he had
'ordered (Rx 8, pp 27»28) |

. The Arbltrator does not cons1det a psychlatncexam that was ordered by a. Section 12 |
phys1c1an to be treatment | |

Petltioner testlﬁed that the 1ntratheca1 purnp allevtates her parn |

Pettttoner objected to the adrmssron of Dep0s1t10n Exh1b1ts 3 10 of Respondent’s Exhrbrt_ |
_ 8 on the basm of hearsay but allowed the Ar‘oltrator to rev1ew such reports for the soie purpose of _
determmmg whether or ot the doctor has approprrately rendered opmtons pursuant to Ghere in
the appropnate trme frame (Rx 8 pp 154 155) |

The Arbltrator s award here mcludes all the treatntent documertted in Petrttoner s treatlng
' medlcal records as well as the total unpald medrcal charges for.such treatment $321 368 95 (Px

25), pursuant to Sectlon 8(a) and_ subje_ct to Sectton 8.2 of the Act.

'K. What temporary beneﬁts are in dlspute" TPD Mamtenance, TTD"
The Arbltrator ﬁnds based on Petitxoner 8 testlmony, the medtcal records, and the

- 'oplmons of Pettttoner S treatlng physmtans that Petmoner is entltled to the penods of temporary

'beneﬁts as outhned beiow SR

It is undlsputed that Petltzoner remaxned off work from March 24 2009 the day after her -
' acmdent through ¥ anuary 13 2010 Petlttoner testlﬁed that around July 13 2009 her beneﬁts
B were temnnated based on Dr Wehner s reports However 1t was eventually worked out that her )

'back beneﬁts would be pald and she contmued wrth her treatment On J anuary 14 2010
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Petitioner attempted to return to full duty work based on the oplmons of Dr CItOW (Rx. 2)
PetItzoner was unabIe to perform her qu duties, and on J anuary 21, 2010 she began to work

hml_ted hours per day and was paid TPD_. .

Petitioner worked on restriete& .hours through the end of the eehoot 'ye.ar. On June 1,
2010, sunliner-bteak begah with Peti.tioner. still on restrictions. 'I"herefore.,' she was entitled to
TTD througtl Atlguét 23, 2010, after which ehe returned for the new sehool year.'and was paid
| TPb onee again. Petition_ef receitfed TPD through.'October 27, 201.'(.).. On Oetob:er 28, 2010, Dr.
Lubeﬁotﬁ/ took Petitio.'ner off work cotﬁoletely. Peti:tiooef Was' en.t.i'tl'ed to T'I."D.th.rough the date
of .Tiuﬁe' 17, 2014, which is the date on wh.i.oh Vocamo_tivé dete_x_mirie_d Pétit_ioner ioSt access 'to
any viable la't)or market, thos corteluding that'h'er: dioaoiiity was total.

After June 17, 2014,'Petitionet continued to receive temporary benefits. Respondent
claims those represent TTD benefits. Petitioner claims that as of this date, Petitioner was
entitl_ed to maintenance benefits while s_he cooperated with_ReSpoooent’_s foter;sic vocational
o'o'u.n_setor,. EVR. | | |

From January Il 2016 through J anua.ry 31 2016 Petltloner test1ﬁed (3 weeks), she
'made a good fmth attempt to retum to work in the accommodated posmon of Parapro fessxonal

Aithough she Worked 8 hours a day, she was bemg paad as a Paraprofessmnal not as a Specxal

Edueatlon Teacher 'I‘herefore she eamed TPD for thls 3~week penod

From February 1 2016 through Febmary 12 2016 Petitloner earned mamtenance

beneﬁts aﬁer her faﬂed attempt to return to Work at that greatly accommodated posmon

On February 12 2016 Dr Lubenow found Pet:tloner to be permanentiy a.nd totally |

dls&bled
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' Based upon the above Petltloner is entltled to recewe 244 1/7 weeks of TTD beneﬁts at

$717 97/week The parttes agree that Respondent pa1d TTD beneﬁts in the amount of

$217, 550 50 (Rx 24, Sectton 9)

Pet1tloner is also ent1tled to 28 weeks of TPD beneﬁts for the penod from August 24
2010 through October 27 2010 at a rate of $464 06/week as well as 3 weeks of TPD beneﬁts
for the penod January 11 2016 through J anuary 31, 2016 when she worked as a

Paraprofessmnal at a rate of $549 99 Respondent is entttled to a credtt in the amount of

$12__,993 .64 for TPD 'pald. (Rx. 2_A, Sectton 9)

Petttxoner is also entxtled to mamtenanee beneﬁts from Iune 18 2{)14 through J anuary 10
_ 2{)16 and Februaxy 1, 2016 through February 12, 2016 a total of 83 3/7 weeks Respond elanns

: they have pald no mmntenance beneﬁts Respondent shall have a credtt for any overpayment of

: TTD as payment for mamtenanoe.

Respondent offered into ev1denee Rx 14 wtnch is entxtled “York Risk Semces

Indmdual Clalm Report showzng payments of ’ITD TPD and PPD dated Oetober 31 2017”

L. What is the nature and extent ot‘ the mjury"

'I‘he Arbltrator has found the oplmons of Dr. Lubenow to be more persuaswe than those

of Doctors Noren and Konowltz. -

On February 12 201 6 Dr Lubenow exammed Petttxoner He noted that she ambulates
o wzth a eane She lnnps and favors the nght Ieg She has a siow, eauttous gatt He further noted
that there is allodyma in the 1ower baok that extends up to the mld-thoracm back as well as in the

. sacral area. Motor strength is 5/5 in both 1egs and deep tendon reﬂexes are symmetnc at 2+ He



found she has a decreased sensation to the cool application of an alcohol pad on the legs, and to a
'greater extent, on the low back and mid back to approximately the T8 dermétorr_lal region. He

rloted_that she has an intraspinal drug deliyery system implanted, which is refilled by Stellar

Home Health. (Px. 24, Der). Ex. 8)

Dr. Lubenow opined ?etitioner has chronic, persistent atypical CRPS of the lower
extremities anrl him.bar. region that is worse since her return to work. Dr. Lubenow was
concemeri that Petitioner was dﬁving above her previously—stated-safe driving restrictions and
noted that; in reality, Petitioner was really not working at her current i)lace of employment. He
limi_ted her driving to 20 minotes ata time. Dr. Lubenow found Petitiuoner to be totally and

permanently disabled. (Px. 24, Dep. Ex. 8)

Based upon the opinions of Dr. Lubenow, the Arbitrator finds that commencing on
February 13, 2016, Petitioner became medically permanently and totally disabled. Therefore, the
Arbitrator orders Respondent to pay Petltroner permanent and total dlsablhty beneﬁts of
$717 97/week for hfe whrch cornmenced on February 13, 201 6, as prov1ded in Sectlon 8(f) of

the Act

0. Evidentiﬁry Ruﬁ_ngz the Glrcre objecti_orl_ .'

| Dﬁring the de'pos.it.ior.ls- of Doct'ore.-W:ehner Noren arrd Korlowitz, Petitioner raised Ghere
ob_]ectlons based on the Court’s ruhng in Ghere v. Indus Comm n, 278 118 App 3d 840 (4th Dist _
' 1996) and Sectlon 12 of the Act Sectlon 12 requu'es in pertment part Respondent to provrde
Petltroner w1th a copy of theu' exammmg physwlan S report no Iater than 48 hours before the
case is set for hearmg The (Ihef'e Court held that a purpose of Sectron 12 was to prevent.

surpnse medlcai testrmony at tr1al In Ghere Dr Chrnaco an emergency room physrcran who
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.'had prev1ously treated clarmant but not for hrs heart testlﬁed hve He offered a causatlon

oplmon regardmg olarrnant 8 heart condmon Respondent objected to the adm1ss1on of such
opmron “The arbltrator sustamed the Obj ectlon The Court agreed wrth the ruhng of the arbrtrator _
and the Comrrnssmn that such oprmon was not furmshed to the employer 48 hours before the - '
arbrtratlon hearmg The Court found that Dr. Chmaco S testlmony constltuted surprlse medrcal_
testrmony Aceordtngly, based on the facts in Ghere the Court apphed the 48—hour rule in
Sectlon 12 to treatmg physrcrans as well | |

At the deposmon of Dr. Konowﬂz when Petrtroner rarsed hlS ﬁrst Ghere objectlon he
argued that Dr K.onowrtz s optmon about Dr. Lubenow s treatment had not heen d1sctosed untﬂ
the commencement of the deposrtlon (Rx 8,p. 23) |

Respondent pomted out that in the Notice of Deposmon (Rx 8 Dep Ex. 2) whrch he

had prevrously sent to Petttloner and to Dr Konow1tz he wrote the followmg

“Questzons wrll be asked durlng the deposrtmn of Dr Konowrtz about Dr. Lubenow s
treatrnent of the Petttroner and hlS wrrtten remarks in narratlve reports about Dr Kono-
wrtz s 0p1mons We w111 ask for Dr Konow1tz’s opmjons about Dr Lubenow s wntten

rema:rks There w111 be no audto-vrsual eqmpment ” (Rx 38, Dep Ex 2)

In response Petmoner argued that rnerely pomtmg out an area in wh;tch the doctor may _

o 'formulate an oplrnon durmg the ttme he is rendermg hlS testlmony m an. ev1dence deposxtlon B

' does'not mee wrth Ghere Accordmgly, he ob}ected and moved that Dr Konowrtz’s opnnon be. '

: stncken (Rx 8; p 24)

" The Arbrtrator overruled this objeetlon
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Later in the deposition, Pe’ntroner s attorney stated that he never received the Notice of
Deposrtron and objected to the admission of sueh document. (Rx. 8 p. 154, Rx. 8, Dep. Ex. 2)
The Arbrtrator overruled such objecnon The Notice of Deposrtron shows that it was sent to
Petrtxoner $ attorney at 134 N. LaSalle Street Suite 1340 Chlcago IL 60602 which is the same
address listed for Petitioner’s attorney on Ax. 1 and Ax. 2A. There is a Certificate of Service
w1th the Notice of Deposrtron that indicates it was sent via regular mail before 5:00 p.m. on
December 14, 2016. (Rx. 8, Dep. Ex. 2)

In Homebrite Ace Hardware v. Indus. Comm'n, 35l Il App. 3d 333 (5™ Dist. 2004),
claimant was injured when lifting buckets. He experienced lo‘w beck r}ain and treated for this
condrtron He was found to have a hernrated dlSC Clarmant was released to return to work with
restrictions. For 4-6 weeks post-accident, there was no mention of any neck problems Claimant
testified that he never had any neck problems before the accident, but later was referred to a
neurosurgeon, who treated him for low back pain and cervical pain once it developed. Before an
ev1dence deposrtron the treatrng neurosurgeon drd not provrde either clarmant’s attorney or
respondent s attomey wrth a report or an oprnron as to a causal connectlon between the current
condrtron of 1ll bemg of hrs low back and neek and the accrdental mjury At the depos1tron the
neurosurgeon testrﬁed over a Ghere objectron, that there was a causal connectron between
clarmant’s low back and neck problerns, and the accrdental mjury The neurosurgeon further
testrﬁed that clarmant was in need of neck surgery, whrch had not been done beeause respondent
~-did not authonze 1t The arbttrator found that the neck and low back were causally related to the .
acmdent.and ordered respondent to authonze the neck surg“ry The Industrral Commrssron

aﬂinned the arbltrator s decrsron and the elrcurt court conﬁrmed tne Commtssron decrsron
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The Appeltate Court in Homebrzte noted that Ghere d1d not set forth a bnght—hne rule '. L

that undlsclosed oprmon testirnony constltutes surpnse

The Homebrzte Court drsagreed wrth the employer s eontentron that the Comrnrssron
cannot arbrtranly detenmne when an op1mon constltutes surpnse testunony The Court noted
that the neurosurgeon s records contazned detaﬂs about treatment of cla:rnant S neck condlnon :
.and hence the employer was put on nottce that the neurosurgeon rn1ght testrfy as to the causal _'
connectlon between the neck condrtlon and the accrdent Therefore the Court rejected the
employer $ argument that tlus testnnony by the.neuro surgeon should have heen excluded

At Dr Konowrtz’s deposrtion on January 5 2017 Petttrouer 5 attomey stated that he |

understands that opposmg counsel and Dr Konowrtz have been in possessron of Dr Lubenow s

_' wntten remarks for years (Rx 8 p 24)

o '. Petrtroner s attorney had no ob_]eetlon to the Arbrtrator revrewrng Deposrtron Exhrbrts 3-
10 of Rx 8 for the sole purpose of determnnng whether or not the doctor appropnately rendered )

opmxons pursuant to Ghere in the appropnate trme frame (Rx 8, pp 154 155)

M. Should penaltles or fees be rmposed upon Respondent" o

| Petltroner ﬁled a motton clalmmg she 1s entrtled to Seetron 19(1() penaltres of

_$1 38 857 80 (— 50% of [$321 368 95 in outstandrng medxcal charges 1ess a Sectlon 8(]) credrt of

_.-$43 653 35]) plus Sectlon 19(1) penalues of $10 000 00 plus Sectron 16 attorneys fees of

'$29 77} 56 (—— 20% of$138 857 80) (Px 33)

o Petmoner argues that when Dr Kmnclc rcferred Petrtroner to Mayo Cilmc Respondent

: dee}med authonzatlon for such referral but agreed to authonze Dr Lubenow at Rush Medrcal '

_ Center to treat Petltloner When Dr Lubenow escatated Petrnoner s care by seekmg ' h
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authorization of an intrathecat pnmp, Respondent sought the opinion of Dr. Noten who advised
agamst the pump When Respondent s own utilization reviewer, Ann leolaou R. N. authorlzed
the 1nsertlon of the 1ntrathecal pump, Respondent dld s0, but then sought the oplnlon ofa pain
specmhst Dr. Konothz Dr. Konowitz recommended removal of the pump It appears that
nelther Dr. Noren nor Dr. Konothz were provided with a complete set of treatmg records

mcludmg the EMG of the lower extremities, when they initially rendered their opinions.

Dr. Lubenow testified that the EMG indicated S1 sciatiea that would explain some of her
radlatmg pain that came from the disc. The Arbxtrator notes however that Petmoner also

complamed of pain in her neck and upper extrem1t1es

Petitioner points out that Respondent denied Petitionet’s req_uest_ to ttave_ Steyen
t}lurnenthal as her choice of vocational counselor. Instead, Respondent authorized Vocamotive,
[nc., to carry out the vocational counseling, After Vocamotwe Inc determmed that Petitioner
had lost access to any vzabie labor market whtch would render her totaiiy disabled Respondent
adv1sed Vocamotwe to oIose then' t‘de Respondent then htred Ms Dytrych of EVR to perform a
forensw vocatlonal analyms Ms Dytrych conduoted a vocattonat mterv1ew of Petltloner in
Whlch Pet1t1oner complamed of paln that starts in her neck and travels down to her toes end
affects her shoulder and arrn baek hands feet Iegs, and buttoeks Petttxoner stated that “if [her}
upper back 1s touched the patn goes np to 10/ 10 » Ms Dytryoh 1mt1a1iy perfonned her :
assessment and noted that there were 2 major 1ssues that prevented Petztloner from retunnné to
tyork her dnvmg hmltatlon and her work hour hmttatlon Ms Dytrych recommended an
updated dr1v1ng evaluatlon Pnor to Ms Dytrych’s compllatton of the Labor Market Survey, Dr
' Konothz removed Petttloner 5 work hour restnctlon Wlthout acknowledgmg the hmltatmns

5 'noted in the F CE and removed Petitloner S dnvmg restnctlons Dr Konowltz testlﬁed that he
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boosted Petrtroner from sedentary to hght duty aﬁer he exarnrned her based on what she told hxm N |
-'she was able to do ngen her own physrcat state He testrﬁed that the FCE isa _]umprng-off pornt
for hnn As noted above Ms Dytrych’s Labor Market Survey rehes on Dr Konow1tz s oprnrons v

. to expand potentml _]Ob opportumtres and does not consrder Dr Lubenow s restnct1ons

Petrtloner returned to work as a Teacher s A1de (Paraprofessronai) in J anuary 201 6 Thrs'

_ 'was offered to Petrtloner based onan ablhty to work an 8-hour day at a facrhty located over a 1-
hour drlve away. Accordmg to Petatroner s treatmg physrcran, nelther requlrement was w1th1n

: .her capabrlmes Respondent made numerous aceomrnodatrons for Petltloner Pnncrpal Dendler

_ tcstrﬁed that he d1d not beheve Petltloner should be workmg at thlS 3ob glven her condltlon
.because she could be struck by a student in class or m the hallway Mr Dendler further testrﬁed

_ | that Petltloner d1d not perform the d‘utles of a Paraprofessmnal but then conceded that she drd

o perform rmmmal paperwork dunng her 5~week atternpt such as takmg attendance and recordmg

3351 gnments 1n the computer _

Petrtrcner pomts out that Respondent has derued payment of numerous medlcal brlls that
totai $321 368 95 whlch mcludes bllls for the rmplantatron and mamtenance of the mtrathecal

rum.p-. R

Respondent argues that Pet1t1oner is not entrtled to any penaltres or fees as they have a

: good falth basrs for non—payment of beneﬁts the ﬁndmgs and oplruons on’ causatlon/ﬁ.tture B
- .'medlcai frorn exammmg physrcrans that mclude board-certrﬁed orthopedrc surgeon Julle M '
o :Wehner, MD board-certrﬁed neurosurgeon Jonathan S Crtow, MD board»certxﬁed |

' rheumatologlst Mary L Moran M D., board—certrﬁed anesthesrologlst and pam rnanagement _
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physician Richard L. Noren, M.D., and board- certified anesthe51olog13t and paln management
physician Howard S. Konow1tz MD.

The Axbltrator ﬁnds that Dr. Konothz gave no oplmon as the. reasonableness or
necesszty of the 1ntratheca1 pump in hlS August 20 2013 report. (Rx 8, pp 29, 142-143) Dr.
Konowitz Iater testiﬁed during his deposition that Petitioner sho_uld be_ weaned from this pump
and that the pump should be dlscontmued | | | | |

On August 27 2012 and September 28, 2012, psychmtnst Alexander E. Obolsky, M.D,,
conducted an “Independent Forensw PSYChIatI‘IC Examlnation” that 1ncluded an mtervww and
extensive testmg of Petitioner. Dr Obolsky opmed w1thm a reasonable degree of medical
psyehlatnc certalnty, that Petitloner d1d not deveIop any condmon of mental 111 bemg due to any
work—related events Dr Obolsky stated that he does not possess the requlslte expertzse to offer
opinions as to (1) whether Petitioner’s physical symptoms and pain complaints are related to the
-work-related incidents, or (2) the appropriateness or necessity of the continuation of prospective
pam management Havmg satd that Dr Obolsky concluded that hlS ﬁndlngs 1nd1eate that
emot1ona1 and secondary gam faetors play a s:gmﬁcant role m the mamtenance, seventy, and
exacerbat:on of her physxcal and pam complamts and that these factors aiso play a s1g111ﬁcant
role in her percelved and reported functzonai 1mpamnents HIS current evaluanon 1nd1c:ated that

'Petltxoner s subjecnve compiamts are 31gmﬁcantly dnven by psychaatnc factors and that these
facters are: unhkely to nnprove w1th surgenes Dr Obolsky Opmed that from a psychxatnc.
: perspecnve Petxnoner conId beneﬁt from conservatwe medlcal care that focused on 1mprov1ngj:"_

| ph) slca}. functlomng whlle puttmg mto pract1ce bemgn neglect of complamts that do not have an

obJectlve bams (Rx 7)
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Bonme J ordan testrﬁed that dunng ?ettttoner s 5-week attempt to return t.o urork m 2016 o
she rernembered stopptng by the classroorn once and saymg hello to Petltroner Ms Jordan 3
testtﬁed that she remembered seelng Petltloner at that tnne s1tt1ng in the back of the classroom '
workmg on papers in no appa.rent dtstress ' |

’I‘he A:rbttrator notes that Respondent has paid Petrtloner $217 550 50 in TI‘D beneﬁts
$12 993. 64 in T PD beneﬁts $8 272.45 in other beneﬁts (permanency advance), and $0 00 in

mamtenance beneﬁts .

Respondent has also pard $43 653 35 in medrcal beneﬁts tbrough thelr group carner and

is entrtled toa Sectron 8(3) credrt in thlS amount

In McMahan W Indus Comm n, 183 111 2d 499 702 NEZd 545 (1998), clarmant

' sustalned a May 20 1992 s11p~and-fall accrdent whtle workmg for respondent that resulted ina

Iow back mjury Clatmant had 1nJured hls back 11 years earher wlnle workmg for another

' employer and underwent back surgery at LS Sl in August 1985 However srnce March 1990

clarmant expenenced very llttle drfﬁculty w1th hrs back whlle workmg as a laborer for
respondent Clannant adrmtted that he penodlcaliy expenenced rrnld leﬁ leg pam and pam down
his left foot Hrs work actrvrtles at respondent s gratn elevator 1neluded clrrnbtng, shovelmg,
pamtmg, and hﬁmg | - _ _ . o _

| On May 21, 1992 clatmant mformed lus supervrsor of the sllp—and-fall accxdent An '
ac<:1dent report was not completed or forwarded to the msurance camer at that tnne because it |
was respondent’s pchcy to take care of small workers .compensatton clatms mternally In:'
Novernber 1992 when clannant’s superv1sor reahzed that clalmant’s low back condttton was

rnore serious than ﬁrst beheved (clarmant had conttnued to work in pam and had v01ced |

- cornplamts), she completed an accrdent report and forwarded it to the insurance carrier. The
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carrier informed the supervisor that there was a problem w1th coverage on the acmdent because

respondent had not complied w1th its pohcy prov1srons As a result, the carrier refused to pay
| any of claimant’s rnedacai bills. The superv1sor was also told by respondent not to pay any more
of clannant’s biils internally. Ciarmant was left to deaI with those bills on his own.

In J anuary 1994, orthopedtc surgeon Walter Baxs1er M.D,, performed a lumbar
iamxnectomy and dlscectomy at L4-L5 on cIarmant The Supreme Court s Decision states:

“Dr. BB,ISICT opmed that surgery was necessary to relieve claimant of his

symptoms and that claimant’s condition was causally connected to his fall

on May 20, 1992. No other physician gave a contrary opinion.”

The Supreme Court considered the sole issue of whether ciarmant was entitled to penalties
under Se_ct_ion 19(k) of the Act and attorney’s fees under Section 16. The Court overruled

precedent and held:

“In any case, we do not read Section 19(k) as precluding the imposition of
penalties for unreasonable and vexatious delay in paylng medical expenses ..
Under Section 8 the amount of ‘compensation’ ... is expressly defined to in-
clude not only compensatlon for Iost wages but also payment for medical

'semces : SRR B T AT

The: Court heId that Petrtroner ‘was enntied to,. inter alza 19(k) penaltles on unpaid

medlcal blllS that totaied $21 795. l L. | |
The Arbltrator ﬁnds that Respondent 8 conduct in the ¢ case at bar does not rise to the
Ievel of the employer 8 conduct in McMahan The empioyer in McMakan demed T’I‘D and pald
only some pre~surg1ca1 med1cal bllls Slgmﬁcantiy, the employer had 1o medrcal opmlon that_
: demed causatlon Moreover the employer made an mtentional dec1S1on not: to honor theu" '
statutory ebhgatron to claarnant and th..y d1d 80 srmply because they had not comphed w1th the

reqmrements of then' tnsurance poh y ano were unwﬂhng to absorb the cost themselves
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In the' case at bar, Dr Lubenow S przmary dtagnosm was atyprcal CRPS Wthh drd not

meet the Budapest crrterra for CRPS Dr Noren optned surgery or the 1nsert10n of needles in the
'regron of the complex regmnal pam syndrome is really consrdered to be contramdleated because
it is hkely t0 exacerbate ot worsen the syndrome Dr Konow1tz dld not dragnose CRPS and d1d
not agree wrth placement of the mtrathecal pump ‘In order to place the pump, lT)r Konowrtz '
test1ﬁed one has to have a dragnosrs that meets the crrtena, and Dr. Lubenow drd not have that
Dr. Konowrtz suggested that dragnosnc etror can lead to treatment error Furtherrnore, Dr
Konow1tz beheved that Petrtloner s current pam may be due to optate—mduced hypersensrtlwty
On February 24, 201 2, followmg a “Utalrzatlon Revrew for Authonzatron of Placement of |
the Intrathecal Pump,” Petltroner had the permanent mtrathecal purnp mstalled (T 106) Aﬁer
the pump was mserted and aﬁer it was shown to allevrate her parn to a moderate degree,
| Respondent sought to have the pump rernoved and demed all charges assocrated w1th the pump,
as well asa number of other blllS . | |
| The Arbrtrator recogmzes that Respondent in the case. at bar engaged in (examnnng)
doctor shoppmg and vocatronal rehabthtatron eounselor shoppmg The Arbrtrator has found that
Petrtroner s treatlng phystcrans are more persuaswe than Respondent’s Sectron 12 exammmg :
physrcrans The Arb1trator grves mmrrnal wei ght to the oplmons of Kathleen Dytrych CRC
Petltroner testtﬁed that she contmues to have her purnp reﬁlled regularly and contmues to
_' see Dr Lubenow every 6 to 9 months So, desprte the fact that Respondent has demed payment
o of a great number of medical brlls the medrcal provrders have rendered and contrnue to render, '
| medrcal care to Petrtroner for her acctdental 1njur1es |
o Respondent has optmons regardmg causatron/future medtcal care from 5 exarmmng

: physrcians as well as an oprmon from 1 exammmg psychlatnst
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Respondent has paid $43,653.35 in medical benefits through their group carrier,

$217,550.50 in TTD._beneﬁts, $12,993.64 in TPD benefits, and $8,272.45 in othe_r benefits
(pen_nariencj/ adv_aﬁcé); .
: . -Based on the fore'going,. the Arbitrator finds that penalties under Sections 19(k) and 19(1),

as well as attorney’s fees under Section 16, are not warranted.

/D) el L6~ 2ary
Brian T. Cronin Date '
Arbitrator

76



18 WC 9605

20 IWCC 333
Page1
STATE OF I_LLINOIS ) _ % Affirm and adopt {no changes) El Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
o )88, | [] Affirm with changes [ Rate Adjustment Fund (58(2))
COUNTY OF - )y D Reverse | L] second Injury Fund (s8(e)19)
JEFFERSON | | ] pTD/Fatal denied
. D Modlfy & None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION | _

Melis_s'a'Causey, o
| Petitioner,
s o - - o | -NO: 18W09605 _' |
T _ O _ -..20 IWCC 333
'Amazon B
| Resp.ondent.

CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Txmely Petmon for Revxew under §19(’o) havmg been ﬁled by the Petltloner herem

and notice given to all parties, the Commission, after considering theissues of acmdent medical
expenses, temporary total dlsabﬂlty, permanent partiai disability, and being advised of the facts
and law, affirms and’ adopts the Demsmn of the Arbltrator whlch 18 attached hereto and made a
part hereof : : :

AT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Deezs;on of the
Arbztrator filed August 1 2019, is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petztloner
interest under §19(n) of the Act ifany.

IT IS F URTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credit
for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behalf of_ Petl_tioner on account of said accidental injury.
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20 IWCC 333
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The party commencmg the proceedmgs for review in the Circuit Court shaﬂ file w1th the
Commission a Notlce of Intent to File for Review in Circmiggurt e

DATED:  JUL 24 2020_ /L + 17
TIT:yl . : Thomas J Tyrrell
0 6/9/20 .

DeborahL S;mpson -

_ MarlaE Portela




o - ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATiON COMMESSIQN
) : NOTICE OF 19(b) ARBQTRATOR DECISION

CAUSEY, MELISSA | Case# 18WC009605
Employéeff‘«’etitioner ' - e

?if:i’?%:sx.mnde.nt | | ._ 20 }. %%? C C 0 3 3 3

On 8! 112019 an arbﬁrat:on decision on this case was filed mth the IHinOlS Workers Compensanon Cornrmssmn in
Chlcago, a copy of whzch is enclosed

1f the Commlssmn reviews thls award interest of 2. 03% shall accrue from Ihe date listed abme to the day before the

date of payment; however 1f an employee 8 appeal resulis in elther no change ora decrease in thxs award, mterest shall
ROt acerue. . _ S

A copy of thlS decaslon is mailed to the followmg pames

4463 GALANTI LAW OFFICE
GIAMBATTISTA PATTI

115 BELLWOOD PR

E ALTON, IL 62024

0000 WIEDNER & MoAULIFFE LTD
JUUE MTENUTO

5000 MARYLAND AVE SUITE 550
STLOUIS, MO 63105
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I:] Injured Workers’ Beniefit Fur_ld (§4(d))
D Rate Adjustment Fund $8)

| L] second tnjury Fund ($8(<)18)

. None of the above g

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS.
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

| ILLIN OIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

ARBITRATION DECISION :
19(b) |
Melissa Causey R Case# 18 WC 09605
Employee/Petitioner S RN o
_Amazon""". o N . _ :
- Employer/Respondent

. An Apphcat:on for Aabustrnenr of Clazm was ﬁled in ﬂ'llS matter, and a Not;ce of Hearmg was malled to each party. '
The matter was heard by the Honorable William R. Gallagher, Atbitrator of the Commission, in the ity of Mt.

Vernon, on June 6, 2019. ‘After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the Arbitrator hereby makes ﬁndmgs on |
_-the dlsputed issues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thzs document _

- {'DIS?UTED ISSUES

A_ D Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the Iihnoxs Workers Compensation or Occupatlonal
. Diseases Act'? P

B. D Was there an employee-empioyer reIatxonshxp" _ : :

c. Dnd an acmdent oceur that’ arose out of and i in the course of Pentloners empiovment by Respondent'?
D. D What was the date of the accxdent? B o

E. D Was tlmeiy notxce of thc acmdent given to Respondcnt‘? L :

F. E Is Petltioner s current conditmn of xll-*bemc causally related to the mjury’P

G. ] What were Pentxoner s eammus" S ) '

H. D What was Pcntloner s age at the ’ume of the acmdent? .

1 D What was Petltloner s mar1ta1 status at the tzme of the acc:dent”

J

. Were the medical servxces that were prowded to Petitioner reasonable and necessary" Has Respondcnt
© paid all appropr;ate charges for all reasonable and necessary medlcal serwces‘? ‘

K. . J1s Petitioner entitled to any prospectwe medlcal care?
L. . {} What temporary benefits are in dxspute,‘?

armp DMamtenance > . ’I‘TD
M. L___I Should penalt:es ot fees be imposed upon Respondent?
N. D Is Respondent due any credltq
0. D Other

ICArbDec19(6) 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chlcago IL 60601 31%814-6611 Tollfiee 865/352-3033  Web site: www.iwcc..il.gov
Downsmfe aoffices: Collinsville 618/396-3450  Peoria 30%/671-3019 Rockford 815/987-7292 .S'pr ingff e.’d 217/785- 7034
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On the date of aemdent February 15 2018, Respondent was operatmg under and su‘oject to the provisions of the
Act. . ‘

FIND]I\GS

On this date an employee—employer re!attonshlp dzd ex:st between Petmoner and Respondent
| On this date Petitioner d1d not sustam an acetdent that arose out of and in the course of employment
Tlmely nonce of thls accldent was given to Respondent '
Petxuoner 5 eurrent eondxtlon of 1ll—bemg is not causally related 10 the accldent
In the year precedmg the mjuxy, Petxtioner earned $n/a the average weekly wage was $380 96.
On the date of aceldent Petlnoner was 35 years of age mamed w1th 3 dependent chlld(ren)
Respondent has pa;d all reasonab}e and necessary charges for all reasonable and necessary medical serv;ces

_Respondent shali be glven a credit of $6 656.38 for ’I“I‘D $0 00 for TPD $0 00 for mamtenance and $0 00 for
other beneﬁts for a total credlt of $6,656.38.

Respondent 1s entltied to a credlt of $0 00 under Seetlon 8(3} of the Act

ORDER

. Based upon the Arbitrator s Conclosnons of Law attached hereto clazm for compensatlon is demed

Inno mstanee shail this award be a bar to subsequent heanng and determmatlon of an addtuonal amount of medical
‘beneﬁts or compensatlon fora temporary or permanent dlsablhty, 1f any. '

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party ﬁles a Petmon for Review within 30 days after zecelpt of thlS

decision, and perfects a review m accordance Wlth the Act and Rules, then thts demston shali be entered as the
decmmn of the Commmszon . - . SRR .

STATEMENT OF IN'EEREST RATE If the Commzssnon reviews thls awatd 1nterest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of. Decnszon ‘of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;
however, if an empioyees appea ults in e1ther no change ora decrease in'this award, interest shall not accrue.

- . , July 30, 2019
WﬂhaInR Gallagher ‘Arbitrgto : _ Date

ICATbDecl9(b)

AUG 1 - 2018
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Petitioner ﬁled an Apphcatzon for Ad_]ustment of Clalm which alleged she snstamed an
accidental injury arising out of and in the course of her employment by Respondent on March
21, 2018, The Application alleged Petitioner "Hurt back packing" and sustained an injury to the
"MAW" (Arbitrator's Exhibit 2). At trial, counsel for Petitioner made an oral motion to amend
the Apphoatxon to change the date of accident to February 15, 2018. Counsel for Respondent had

no objection, the Arbitrator granted the motion - and changed the date of accident on the
Appixcanon to February 15 2018

Thls case was tned m a 19(b) proceedmg and Petltaoner sought an oader for payment of medlcal
bills and temporary total disability benefits as well as prospective medical treatment, Inregard to
“temporary total disability benefits, Pentloner alleged she ‘was -entitled 1o ‘temporary :total
disability | benefits of 62 4/7 weeks, oommencmg March 25, 2018 through Iune 6,2019 (the date
of trial). The prospective medical -treatment  sought - by Pétitioner was a two level disc
"replacement surgery recommended hy Dri Matthew Gormet, ‘an orthopedlc surgeon. Respondent
' .dls;)uted iiabﬂlty on the basxs of accident and causal relatlonsth (Arbltrator 5 Exhﬂnt 1)

B Peﬁtnoner beoame employed by. Respondent in August 2017 and worked as both a “pxcker“ and
a "packer." ‘Most of the time, Petitioner worked as a picker, but there were occasmns m whlch
3 'Petxtxoner was dlrected to work asa paoker : :

: Petmoner iest]ﬁed that when she worked as a pwker she was told where a product was located
she proceeded to the location where the product Was, and scanned both the location and product.
“The product was then plcked and placed in a cage. Petitioner stated she was ai the same level as
the cage so she could walk into and place the ‘product in its appropriate place While picking,
Petitioner used a lift to raise her to the level of the product on the shelf that it was to be picked

from. Once the cage was full of products, Petmoner wonld take it to k] packmg statlon and then
rresume her dutiesas a plcker L

When Pentioner worked as a packer ‘she would paok various products into boxes Packmg
involved getting an empty box, puttmg the box on a table, getting the product out of the cage and
packmg the product inside the box. Petitioner stated she was directed to work as a packer on a
regular basis, especially when Respondent had large orders. While packing, Petitioner stated she

would pack approx1mately 60 items per hour for'a 10 hour shift with two 15 minute breaks and
an hour for 1unch . AR -

When Petinoner was 1mt1aﬂy questloned about 1he accident of Febmazy 15, 2018 she testlﬁed
she had been at work all day, was at her residence, sat down to take a break and when she gof up

she felt as though she was . gomg 1o snap in half* and compared 1t to whon she had k}dney
stones approx;mate]y 15 ycars prlor .

Petmoner subsequently testified she expenenced the onset of pam at- Work on February 15 2018,
when she lifted a bag of dog food from the bottom of the cage. Petitioner estimated the bag of
dog food weighed approximately 45 pounds. Petitioner testified she reported that she sustained
the injury while lifting the bag of dog food to her treatmg medical providers, Dr. Eavenson and
Dr. Gornet as weIl asto Respondent‘s Section 12 examiner, Dr deGranOe

Melissa Causey v. Amazon 18 WC 09605
Page 1 : _ ' .
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Petltioner mmaiiy sought medzcal treatment at the ER of Anderson Hosp1ta1 on February 15,
2018. According to the ER record, Petitioner complamed of left sided flank pam that had been
present for two or three days ‘Petitioner indicated it began that day while going to work and
nothing she did brought the pain on, worsened it, or lessened it. The record did not contain any

reference to Petitioner having sustained an injury at work or that she injured her back while

lifting a bag of dog food Further, the record noted that Petittoner "demes mJury“ (Pettttoners
Exhxbn 1) ' R _

'On cross-exammanon, Petttmner acknowledged she d1d not know she mjured her back at work _
but. expenenced pain while working as a packer. Petitioner ‘agreed there was not a spec:ﬁc

incident of bending or twisting which caused her 10 expenence 10W back pam but it appeared
_over time whlle she was workmg in pack:ng G .

_Followmg the ER Vis1t of February 15 2018, Peutzoner retumed to work for Respondent as a
picker. Petitioner worked as a ‘picker for several weeks and did'not experience any back pain, On
‘March 21, 2018, Petitmner was directed to work 'in the- packmg ‘department. Durmg that day,
~ Petitioner requested 1o be moved back to the picking department ‘but her request was denied.
-_Pentloner was informed: that there ' was 16 one else trained for packmg Later in the day, '
* Petitioner said she saw two or three other pickers who were trained to pack so she renewed her
- request to move back to the pmkmg department but tt was agam demed

_ On March 21 201 8 Petxtmner went to the HR department to complam about her request bemg
- denjed. At that time, Petitioner reported she sustained a work-related i injury. Petitioner completed

: 'and mgned a for eaptmned "Associate First Report of Injury.” The form listed the incident date
‘as "2/15/ER Visit" and Petitioner. started feeling pain in the ‘back before: iunch asked if she could
ple or if someone could altemate was informed no-one else was tramed saw four p1ckers that -
Were - tramed and talked to mdmduals named Chnstian Thornas and Steve There ‘Was no

- mention ‘in’ this report of Petmoner havmg 1n3ured herself whﬁe hftmg a bag of dog food
(Respondent s Exhlblt 3) . _ .

_On March 21 2018 Petltu)ner sought treatment at Multlcare Speeiahsts and was evaiuated by
-MicheIIe Lemp, a Nurse Practitioner. Peuuoner informed NP Lemp that she expenenced fow

- back pam while at work while worklng as a packer. NP Lemp diagnosed Petitioner with low

back pain, prescribed medication and authorlzed Petitioner to be off work. There was no mention

in"the record of Petmoner sustammg an - m_}ury while liftmg a bag of dog food (Petltwners
E Exhlbzt 2) g . _ e . -

'The fo!lowmrr day, Mareh 22 2018 Petttloner was seen by Dr Mark Eavenson, a chlropra,etor
Petitioner complamed of low ‘back pain and related it to workmg asa packer and the picking job

was much easier. Dr. Eavenson ordered x-rays of the lumbar spine which revealed degenerative '

disc disease at multiple levels. He opined Petitioner had a lumbar disc protrusion and imposed
work/actlvzty restrictions. Dr. Eavenson - ordered physical " therapy, chtropractlc tfreatment,

cupping and an MRI scan. Again, there was no ‘reference to Petltmner sustammg an mjury while
hﬁmg a bag of dog food (Petmoners Exhtbﬁ 2)

The MRI was perfonned on March 22 2018 Aecordmg to the radmlogmt the MR_I revea}ed
annular tears at L4-L5 and L5-81 (Petitleners Exhibit 7). '

Melissa Causey v. Amazon 18 WC 09605
Page 2 : ' '
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: -_Dr Bavenson referred Petluoner to Dr Matthew Gomet an orthepedte surgeon Dr Gomet
‘evaluated Petitioner on March 30, 2018. Ina form completed and signed by Petitioner on. that
date, Petitioner noted that the date of accident was March 21, 2018, at about 3:15 PM. Aecordmg
to Dr. Gomet's record ef that date,. Petitloner informed: him her: problem began one 1o two
months prior when she was switched from p1ckmg to packing. He noted that when Petitioner was
packmg she was requlred to bend and lift packages from a cage and place them on a table and .
‘this® aggravated hercondition, but pmkmg did not. Dr. Gornet reviewed the MRI and opined it
- revealed annular tears and disc protrusions at L4-L5-and L.5-81. Dr. Gornet recommended three
“more weeks of phys:eal therapy. There was no reference in Dr. Gornet's records, mcludmg the .
- form compléted by Petitioner, of Petxtmner havmg mju.red her baek whﬂe pxekmg up a bag of
_dog food (I’etmoners Exhlblt 3) ' ' : : :

At the d:reetmn of ReSpondent Petmoner was exammed by Dr Donald deGrange an orthopedxc L
. 'surgeon on June 7, 2018. In connection with_ his examination of Petitioner, Dr. deGrange
_ revxewed imedical records prevxded to him by Respondent Petitioner compiamed of low back_
'pam ‘but’ wnhout any ‘lower - extrexmty Ppain, numbness or weakness. Petitioner. adwsed Dr..
_'deGrange that on February 15, 2018, she was ‘working as a paeker and develop symptoms similar -~ -
to'those she prevxously had when she had iadney stones 10 years prior. Petitioner deserlbed the -
- pain s bemg insidious and did not recall any speelﬁc meldent (mciudmg hﬁmg a bag ef dog -

- : _food) but only that she began to expenence d1scomfort

Dr deGrange rev;ewed the MRI and opmed 1t revealed annular ﬁssures at L4-L5 and LS Sl Dr.
- deGrange: opmed Petltloners work activities of Februsry 15,2018, were consistent w1th alumbar = . :
. strain” which- aggravated a pre~exxstmg degeneratwe condition. He also’ ‘opined that further o
; physmai therapy was; not mcheateé ‘but: that Petitioner might benefit from* epidurai steroid
injections, but a ‘maximum of two; He noted Petitioner could return to work thh a 25 pound
'lxﬂmg Iirmt and }umted bendmg and thstmg (Respondent’s Exhxbit 5) '

_' 'Dr Gornet saw Petmoner on August 6, 201 8, and rev:ewed Dr deGrange s repert notmg he had '
recommended epidural steroid Ainjections. Dr. Gornet agreed there was no significant neurelogm

“compression, but’ referred Petmoner to Dr. Heien Biake for the epldural stercnd mjectzons
-(Petltxoner s Exh1b1t 5) ' :

_;'Dr Blake saw Penuener on August 7, and August 21 2018 On these eeeasmns, she
admirnistered an ep1dura1 steroxd mjection on the nght at LS Sl and on the nght at L4 LS
respeetweiy (Petmoner 3 Exhlbzt 8) . .

Dr Gomet subsequently saw Petmoner on October 1 2018, and noted the ep1dura1 ster(nd
injections did not provide Petitioner- with any s1gn1ﬁcant relief. Dr. Gornet ordered additional
diagnostic tests including a dlscogram CT scan and MRI spectroseopy Dr. Gotnet has
recommended Petitioner undergo a two level disc replacement surgery at L4-L5 and LS S1. Dr.
Gomnet last saw Petatloner on March 28 2019 (Peutloner s Exh1b1t 5)

At the dlreetlon of Respondent Petitioner was agam exammed by Dr. deGrange on February 6,

2019. At that time, Dr. deGrange reviewed additional medical records and diagnostic studies
provided to him by Respondent ‘Petitioner compiamed of low back and right hip pain with
occasional numbness in the right calf} however, Dr. deGra.nge s findings on examination were
' con31stent with what they were prewously Dr. deGrange noted Petitioner had recewed extenswe-

Mehssa Causey v. Amazen 18 WC 09605
Page 3 '
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medical treatment smce ‘the Iast nme he saw her w}uch mcluded 10 t0 11 months of
physiotherapy, chiropractic care and cupping. Dr. deGrange again questioned Petrtmner whether
she could recall any specaﬁc event such as hftmg or slipping/falling. Petitioner could not recall

.any such incidents and again stated the bendmg and tw:stmg whlle packmg aggravated her low
back pam (Respondent‘s Exha’oxt 6)

Dr. deGrange DOwW opmed that the bendmc and twastmg prevmusly descubed by Peutioner was
1o more likely to cause pain than bendmg and twisting at home. He also opined that the
continuous therapy and chiropractic treatment Petitxoner had received was excessive and a two
level disc replacement surgery was not indicated due; in part, to the fact Petitioner was morbidly
obese. Dr. deGrange now opined Petitioner had chronic low back pain whxch was ot related to
the work-related aCtIVIUE:S of F ebruary 15,201 8 (Respondcnt‘s Exhrblt 6).

Dr Gomet was deposed on Apnl 29 2019 and hrs deposztion testlmony was recelved mto
evidence at tmal On direct exammatmn, Dr. Gornet's testimony ‘was consistent with his’ medical
“records and he reaffirmed the: ‘opinions contamed therein. Dr. Gornet related the annular tears at
LA4-L5 and L5-81 to Petitioner's’ activities as a4 packer becaise that was when her’ symptormns
began. He reaffirmed his_recommendation . Pétitioner undergo a two 1eve1 dlsc replacement
'surgery at those lcvels (Petrtroners EXhlblt 5 pp 9 14 15)

| On cross exammatron, Dr Gomet agreed he had not rev1ewed 3ob descnptlons for e;ther the
. ;prckmg or packing job. Dr. Gornet also- agreed he had not reviewed a job analyms report or video

~ job analysis of either position.. When Cross- exammed about degenerative ﬁndmgs being present
~before the work i injury, Dr. Gorriet replied, it p ..something occurred with this mechanical

actmty, and domg that, 1 believe that's when she sustamed dxsc mgury A (Petmoners Exhxblt 5

Dr deGrange was deposed on May 7, 2019 and h.lS deposmon testunony was recewed into -

evidence at trial. On direct examination, Dr. deGranges testimony was consistent with his
mechcal reports and he reaffirmed the - ‘opinions ' contained therein. In- regard to his first
examination of June 7, 2018, Dr, deGrange testified Petmoner did'not inform him that she had
sustained a specific i injury on February 15, 2018, Based upon’ Petltmners descnpnon of her work
activities, ‘Dr. deGrange opined she sustained a ‘lumbar strain - which was a temporary

exacerbation’ of her underiymg degcneratwe dlsc d1sease at L4-L5 and 13-81 {Respondent‘
Ex}nblm pp7 13 14) : :

Dr deGrange testlﬁed Petmoner could not recall any speclﬁc 1ncident ’out that she attnbuted her
symptoms to bendmg and twisting while working as a packer. Dr. deGrange considered bending
and fwisting as a normal daily activity and while Petitioner attributed it to her work, Dr.

deGrange noted that one should "...not confuse association with causation.” {(Respondent's
Exh1b1t4 pp28 -29. : S o - -

When cross-exammed, Dr. deGrange éxp_lairled he changed his opinion regarding causation
based upon Petitioner's persistence of symptoms and that Petitioner could not recall anything that
might have caused it. He stated "I no longer believed that her ongoing symptoms were a

consequence of anythmg she m1ght have done in February of 201 8." (Respondent's Exhibit 4;pp

47- 48)
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At ’mal Pet1t1oner tesnﬁed her current symptoms prevent her from domg anythmg 1nvoivrng any
stress for longer than five minutes or so. Petitioner stated she is willing and able to return to
work as a picker, but not as a packer, Petitioner has continued to seek e“mropraetre care and
wants to proceed Wrth the surgery as recommended by Dr. Gornet '

On cross-exammatron Pet1t1oner conceded she was strll able to take farmly vacations and
recently made a trip to Florida Whlch meluded atwo and one-haif hour plane ride. Further,
Petitioner also traveled to Utah by car to visit her sister and estimated thrs took about 18 hours
While there Petztroner also engaged in some hrkmg on trarls

'Con'closioris of Law
In regard to d1sputed issue (C) the Arbr’crator makes the folIowmg conclusmn of law

The Arbltrator concludes Pentloner dld not sustain an accxdental mgury ansmc out of and n the
course of her employment by Respondent on. February 15 201 8

'In supporr of thrs conclusmn the Arbitrator notes the foilowmg

It was not clear from Peturoners tesumony whether she was claimmg to have sustamed a
-~ specific accident ‘on Febniary 15, 2018, or whether she was clazmmg to have sustamed a
' 'repetrtlve trauma mjury whleh mamfested 1tse1f on February }5 201 8.

- Petltloner testrﬁed she experreneed parn in her low. baek whrle workmg as a paeker but also

B testified she experienced the onset of pam on. February 15 2018 when she hﬂed a bag of dog
. food that Weighed 45 pounds - ;

Petltloner testlﬁed she mformed Dr Eavenson, Dr. Gomet and Dr. deGrange of havmg injured
her back while lifting a bag of dog food; however, such a hlstory was not contained in any of

their records/reports Further sueh a hrstory was not mciuded in ‘the First Report prepared by
Petltroner : _ o _

Petmoner also testlﬁed she expeneneed the onset of pain on February 15 2018, when she got up
r‘rom takmg a break at home _

When seen at Anderson Hosprtal on February 15, 201 8, Petrtzoner compiamed of left sided ﬂank
pain that had been present for two or three days and that she had experienced the onset of pain -
while going to work. Further, there was nothmg in the record of that date that refereneed any
Work—related m}ury and Petltroner demed mjury

When Petitioner was seen by Dr. Gornet on March 30, 2018 she completed a form wlnch noted
the date of accident was March 21, 2018, at 3:15 PM; however, Dr. Gomet's record indicated
Petitioner experienced the onset of pain while working as a packer.
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.Petmoner apparentiy d:d have to cngage in hendmg and tvnstmg w}u!e Workmg as a packer and
Dr. deGrange initialty opmed this may have caused Petitioner to have sustamed a lumbar strain.
However, given the long permds of physmai therapy, chlropractlc care, cupping and epidural

steroid injections, and the persistence of her symptoms, Dr. deGrange subsequently opined

Petitioner had a chromc low back condltlon that was not reiated to her work actmties of
_ FebruarylS 2018 : - :

Dr Gornet's opmlon that Pentmners low back condmon was reiated to her work was based in
large part, on his belief that "something occurred" with Petitioner's activities at work to cause the
dlSC m_}ury “This i is not a sufﬁcxent basxs to fmd a medxcai causai relatxonshlp

' -Based upon all of the precedmg, thc Arbitrator concludes Pet1t1<_mer d1d not sustam ezther a
_speczﬁc m;ury ora repctmve trauma 1njury on February 15, 2018 '

'-In regard to dxsputed issues {F) (J) (K) and (L) the Arb1trator makes no conciusmns of law as
_thése issues are rendered moot because of the Arbxtrators conc}usmn of faw i m disputed issue

- ©-

-WllhamR Gailagher, Arbitrator 5 ﬂ L
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